(530) 895-4711 ‘ ARD 545 Vallombrosa Ave
chicorec.com Chico, CA 95926

Chico Area Recreation & Park District

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING
Thursday, February 22, 2024 — 4:00 P.M.

If you need an accommodation to participate in this meeting, please call (530) 895-4711
Agenda posted prior to 4:00 PM Monday, February 19, 2024

BOARD MEMBERS CARD STAFF

Michael McGinnis, Chair Annabel Grimm, General Manager

Dave Donnan, Vice Chair Angela Carpenter, Finance Manager

Tom Lando Holli Drobny, Business Services Manager
Christopher Norden Anjie Goulding, Recreation Director

Michael Worley Scott Schumann, Parks and Facilities Director
LEGAL COUNSEL

Jackson Glick, Sac Valley Law

AGENDA
Zoom Meeting Information:
https://card.zoom.us/j/81607636750?pwd=RTNNUkKZPYi9ySGNsNVQ30Xh0U1hoZz09
Meeting ID: 816 0763 6750
Passcode: 156857

1. CALL TO ORDER
1.1. Roll Call

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Members of the public may address the Committee at this time on any matter not already listed on the Agenda,
with comments being limited to three minutes. The Committee cannot take any action at this meeting on
requests made under this section of the agenda.

3. CONSENT AGENDA Action Requested: Board of Directors approve the consent agenda.

3.1. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors on January 25, 2024

3.2. December 2023 Monthly Financial Report (Staff Report FI-24-005)

3.3. Levy Administration (Staff Report FI-24-007 and Resolution 24-004) Action Requested:
Board of Directors directs SCI Consulting Group to prepare the Engineer’s Report for the
Oak Way, Amber Grove/Greenfield, and Baroni Neighborhood Park and Open Space (No.
LLD 0017-05) Landscape and Lighting Assessment Districts.

3.4. Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Audit (Staff Report FI-24-006) Action Requested: Board of
Directors to accept the audit report for fiscal year 2021-2022 as prepared by Chavan &
Associates, LLP.
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February 22, 2024

4. REGULAR AGENDA
4.1. Committee Report Out — Information provided/possible action
4.1.1. Finance Committee
4.1.2. Facility Committee (Meeting Summary and Packet)

4.2. Updated Policies (Staff Report 24-009)- Action Requested. Board of Directors approve
updated policies.
District Staff have updated the following policies to ensure compliance with the recent
legislative requirements.
e 3108 — Drug and Alcohol Testing
e 3116 — Employee Classifications
e 3122 - Overtime

4.3. Aquatic Design Scope (Staff Report FI-24-008) Information Provided/Possible Action
District staff will provide an update on the Aquatics project and discuss the scope of the
design contract.

4.4. ltems Removed from the Consent Agenda

5. NEW BUSINESS
5.1. Notice of Exemption of CEQA Study (Staff Report 24-010) Action Requested: Board of
Directors approve the filing of the notice of exemption of the CEQA study related to the
Aquatic Facility Project.

5.2. Softball Donation (Staff Report FA-24-001) Action Requested: Board of Directors accept
the donation of materials.
Chico Softball Little League would like to donate materials for a T-ball backstop and
snack bar improvements.

5.3. Arc Collaboration (Staff Report FA-24-002) Action Requested: Board of Directors approve
the Arc collaboration, accept the playground components, and install the equipment at
Rotary Centennial Park.

The ARC has offered a donation of new playground equipment to be installed in the
District.

5.4. Rotary Donation (Staff Report FA-24-003) Action Requested. Board of Directors accept
the donation of funds for park amenities.
The Noon Rotary Club would like to donate funds for additional park amenities at
Rotary Centennial Park.
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February 22, 2024

5.5. Change Order for Tyler Technology Implementation (Staff Report FI-24-009) Action
Requested: The Board of Directors approves the change order to allocate additional hours
to the Tyler Technology software implementation.

The District would like Tyler Technologies to allocate additional hours in their contract
to the current software implementation.

5.6. Nature Center ADA Project Award (Staff Report FI-24-010) Action Requested: The Board
of Directors award the Nature Center ADA Project Award.
As a part of the District's 5-year plan to address ADA improvement, the Nature Center
ADA Project will address the path of travel at the facility.

5.7. Committee Alternates Information Provided/Possible Action
An opportunity for the Board to discuss and appoint alternates for Board Committees

6. DIRECTOR COMMENTS
Opportunity for the Board to comment on items not listed on the agenda.

7. STAFF COMMENTS
Opportunity for District Staff to comment on items not listed on the agenda.
Recreation Update (Staff Report 24-011)
Parks and Facilities Update (Staff Report 24-012)
General Manager Update (Staff Report 24-013)

8. CLOSED SESSION
Pursuant to Government Code 54956.9: Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation —
Tarmin
Pursuant to Government Code 54957: Public Employment Performance Review — General
Manager

9. ADJOURNMENT
Adjourn to the next meeting of the Board of Directors of the Chico Area Recreation and
Park District.
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(530) 895-4711 ‘ ARD 545 Vallombrosa Ave
chicorec.com Chico, CA 95926

Chico Area Recreation & Park District

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
January 25, 2024 - 4:00 P.M.

DRAFT

Board Members Present: Michael McGinnis, Chair
Dave Donnan, Vice-Chair
Tom Lando, Board Member
Christopher Norden, Board Member
Board Members Absent: Michael Worley, Board Member
Staff Members Present: Annabel Grimm, General Manager
Angela Carpenter, Finance Manager
Holli Drobny, Business Services Manager
Anjie Goulding, Recreation Manager
Scott Schumann, Parks and Facilities Manager
Legal Counsel Present: Jeff Carter, Attorney at Law

1. CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order at 4:00, and a roll call was taken, as noted above.

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS
There were no public comments.

3. CONSENT AGENDA
3.1. Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors on December 12, 2023.
3.2. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors on December 14, 2023.
3.3. November 2023 Monthly Financial Report (Staff Report FI-24-001)
3.4. Calendar for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget Process (Staff Report FI-24-002)

M/S/C/ (Directors Lando/Norden) Board of Directors approved the consent agenda.
The motion was unanimously approved.
Absent: Worley

4. REGULAR AGENDA
4.1. Committee Report Out
4.1.1.  Facility Committee
4.1.2. Finance Committee

4.2. Updated Policies (Staff Report 24-001)
e 3100 Accommodations for Disability
e 3104 Disciplinary Action
e 3106 Driving for the District
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January 25, 2024

e 3124 Employee References & Verification of Employment

e 3126 Nepotism

e 3141 Inclusive Workplace

e 3142 Whistleblowing

e 3146 Lactation Accommodation

e 3300 Internet, E-Mail and Electronic Communications

e 3405 Bereavement Leave

e 3435 Jury Duty

e 3440 Leave for Crime Victims and Family Members

e 3445 Military Leave

e 3497 Organ and Bone Marrow Donor Policy
M/S/C/ (Directors Lando/Norden) Board of Directors approved the updated policies listed
above, with the stipulation that the limitation of the paid days for Jury Duty be removed.
The motion was unanimously approved.
Absent: Worley

4.3. Valley's Edge Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) (Staff Report 24-002)
M/S/C/ (Directors Lando/Donnan) Board of Directors approved the Valley’s Edge MOU with
the Master Developer and the acceptance of the proposed parks named in the MOU pending
voter approval in March 2024.
The motion was unanimously approved.
Absent: Worley

4.4. General Manager Performance Evaluation
M/S/C/ (Directors Lando/Norden) Board of Directors approved an increase to the General
Manager's salary by 5%, resulting in an annual salary of $143,325.
The motion was unanimously approved.
Absent: Worley

4.5. 2023 Annual Impact Report Draft (Staff Report 24-003)
District staff presented a draft of Key Performance Indicators to the Board demonstrating the
District's impact to the community in 2023.

5. NEW BUSINESS

5.1. Open Account with Tri Counties Bank (Staff Report FI-24-003 & Resolution 24-001)
M/S/C/ (Directors Norden/McGinnis) Board of Directors approved Resolution 24-001,
allowing the District to move forward with opening an account with Tri Counties Bank.
Ayes: McGinnis, Norden
Absent: Worley
Abstain: Lando
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January 25, 2024

Noes: Donnan
The motion was approved.

5.2. Authorizing Grant Application (Resolution 24-002)
M/S/C/ (Directors Lando/McGinnis) Board of Directors approved Resolution 24-002
authorizing the District to apply for the Outdoor Recreation Legacy Partnership (ORLP)
Program. Grant funds can be used for the acquisition and/or development of, or to
substantially renovate public parks and other outdoor recreation spaces.
The motion was unanimously approved.
Absent: Worley

5.3. 2024 Calendar of District Events (Staff Report 24-004)
The Board reviewed the 2024 calendar of Community Events (free) and Special Events
(admission required).

5.4. Retention of New Legal Counsel (Staff Report 24-005)
M/S/C/ (Directors Norden/Lando) Board of Directors approved the retention of Sac Valley
Law Firm to provide legal services to the District.
The motion was unanimously approved.
Ayes: Donnan, Lando, Norden
Absent: Worley
Abstain: McGinnis

5.5. Recognizing Jeff Carter for Distinguished Service (Resolution 24-003)
M/S/C/ (Directors Lando/Donnan) Board of Directors approved Resolution 24-003,
recognizing Jeff Carter, who has served as the Legal Counsel for the District for 36 years.
The motion was unanimously approved.
Absent: Worley

6. DIRECTORS' COMMENTS

Lando expressed the desire to see the cost and revenue of the Ice-Skating Rink. McGinnis
stated that in the future the use of the Plaza bathrooms be reconsidered. Donnan said that he
would like to see additional gates installed at the Pickle Ball courts.

7. STAFF COMMENTS
8. ADJOURNMENT

Adjourned at 4:47 to the next meeting of the Board of Directors of the Chico Area Recreation
and Park District.
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Staff Report FI-24-005
Finance Agenda Item C

CARD Regular Agenda Item 3.2
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chico Area Recreation & Park District

Finance Committee

STAFF REPORT

DATE:
TO:
FROM:

February 22, 2024
Board of Directors
Angie Carpenter

SUBJECT: December Monthly Financials

ANALYSIS

Highlights of the December financial reports:

The majority of property tax proceeds were collected in December, increasing the
District’s Cash balance ~$6.3M.

Investment income, on page 8, continues to be better than expected due to the
performance of the investment in CA Class. The average yield dipped to 5.45% over the
past month.

Revenue overall is 73% for the year, as noted on page 9. Aquatics and Other Income are
trending below the 50% mark due to the winter season and will begin to trend up in the

spring.
On page 10, Worker's Compensation expenses are higher than projected.

Operating expenses are 57% of the budget (page 11); some of the expenses will be
included in January's financials report due to the timing of the software implementation.
Annual expenses paid in full and planned purchases of computers and equipment are
inflating the YTD percentage.
o Equipment contains $28,700 for lighting and sound equipment for the Ice Rink
that will be reimbursed.
o Contract services contain ~$150K of contract instructor payments. The income
offsets are in Camps and Classes.
o Transportation is higher than budgeted. However, the income offsets are similar
to Contract Services.
o Water and Electricity expenses have decreased for the winter months, while Gas
will start to trend high during the same period.
o Sewer expenses are billed quarterly and will be reflected in the January report.
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CHICO AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET SUMMARY - ALL FUNDS

DECEMBER 2023
GENERAL COMMUNITY PARK IMPACT INDIGO OAK WAY PETERSON BARONI MEMORANDUM
FUND PARK FEES FUND PARK PARK PARK PARK TOTALS ONLY
ASSETS
CASH 17,169,226 6,148,252 427,219 - B - 38,626 | 23,783,323
FMV ADJUSTMENT (GENERAL FUND) - - - - - - - -
RECEIVABLES 202,167 - 49,875 - B - - 252,042
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS 133,245 4,635,419 - - - - - 4,768,664
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 17,504,637 | 10,783,671 477,094 - - - 38,626 | 28,804,029
FIXED ASSETS 45,130,450 - - - - - - 45,130,450
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (18,470,446) - - - - - - (18,470,446)
SUBTOTAL 26,660,004 - - - - - - 26,660,004
TOTAL ASSETS 44,164,642 | 10,783,671 477,094 - - - 38,626 | 55,464,033
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES - GASB 68 1,186,655 - - - - - - 1,186,655
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 17,940 - - - - - - 17,940
ACCRUED EXPENSES 353,008 - - - - - - 353,008
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS - 7,125 29,521 12,203 23,660 60,735 133,245
OTHER LIABILITIES 138,163 - - - - - - 138,163
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 509,111 - 7,125 29,521 12,203 23,660 60,735 642,356
LONG-TERM DEBT
NET PENSION LIABILITY 657,142 - - - - - - 657,142
LIABILITY FOR COMPENSATED ABSENCES 263,428 - - - - - - 263,428
SUBTOTAL 920,570 - - - - - 920,570
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,429,681 - 7,125 29,521 12,203 23,660 60,735 1,562,926
LIABILITY FOR COMPENSATED ABSENCES - - - - - - - -
SUBTOTAL - - - - - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 920,570 - - - - - - 920,570
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES - GASB 68 755,205 - - - - - - 755,205
FUND BALANCE
RESTRICTED - 10,434,760 465,219 - - - 38,626 | 10,938,605
SPENDABLE - COMMITTED 2,500,000 - - - - - - 2,500,000
SPENDABLE - UNASSIGNED 11,903,308 - - - - - - 11,903,308
NON-SPENDABLE 31,188,472 - - - - - - 31,188,472
FUND BALANCE 45,591,779 | 10,434,760 465,219 - - - 38,626 | 56,530,384
TOTAL NET INCOME (LOSS) 2,678,812 - 4,750 (5,063) (80,304) (65,755) (64,626)| 2,467,814
CURRENT YEAR NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS (1,334,898) 22,618 - - - (1,334,898)
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 46,935,693 | 10,434,760 469,969 (5,063) (80,304) (65,755) (26,000)| 57,663,300




CHICO AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
SUMMARY - ALL FUNDS

DECEMBER 2023
GENERAL PARK IMPACT OAK WAY PETERSON BARONI INDIGO MEMORANDUM
FUND FUND PARK PARK PARK PARK TOTALS ONLY
REVENUE
FEE BASED PROGRAM INCOME 2,575,737 - - - - - 2,575,737
OTHER INCOME 322,806 - - - - - 4,958,225
RDA PASSTHROUGH 932,541 - - - - - 932,541
INVESTMENT INCOME 187,622 - - - - - 187,622
TAX INCOME / COUNTY 4,828,307 - - - - - 4,828,307
PARK IMPACT FEES - 11,875 - 11,875
ASSESSMENTS - - - - - 5,103 -
OPERATING TRANSFER IN - - - - - - -
TOTAL REVENUE 8,847,014 11,875 - - - 5,103 13,494,308
EXPENSE
SALARIES & BENEFITS 3,955,295 - 60,410 39,089 53,303 - 4,108,097
SERVICES & SUPPLIES 1,793,845 - 19,894 26,667 11,323 - 1,856,792
CONTRIB. TO OTHER AGENCIES 12,865 - - - - 40 12,865
TOTAL EXPENSE 5,762,006 - 80,304 65,755 64,626 40 5,977,754
NET REVENUE BEFORE SPECIAL EXPENSE 3,085,008 11,875 (80,304) (65,755) (64,626) 5,063 7,516,554
SPECIALLY ALLOCATED ITEMS
DEPRECIATION 406,196 - - - - - 406,196
FAIR MARKET VALUE ADJUSTMENT - - - - - - -
TOTAL SPECIALLY ALLOCATED 406,196 - - - - - 406,196
REVENUE OVER (UNDER) 2,678,812 11,875 (80,304) (65,755) (64,626) 5,063 7,110,358
CAPITAL ASSETS AND REPAIR PROJECTS
CAPITAL / REPAIR PROJECTS 4,079,741 - - - - - 4,079,741
CAPTIAL PROJECTS REIMBURSEMENT 2,744,843 - - - - 3,260,902
NET CAPITAL PROJECTS (1,334,898) - - - - - (1,850,957)
[TOTAL REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 1,343,914 11,875 (80,304)] (65,755)] (64,626)] 5,063 | 5,259,400 |




CHICO AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND - FUND 2490
BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 2023
Increase (Decrease)
DECEMBER 2023 DECEMBER 2022 $ Change % Change
ASSETS
CASH
CASH ON DEPOSIT WITH COUNTY (GENERAL FUND) 2,799,498 6,381,895 (3,582,397) -56%
CASH - GOLDEN VALLEY BANK 4,672,049 849,090 3,822,959 450%
CASH ON DEPOSIT WITH California CLASS (GENERAL FUND) 2,581,126 - 2,581,126 0%
CASH - GOLDEN VALLEY BANK CD (GENERAL FUND) 7,117,541 -
PETTY CASH 800 800 - 0%
SUBTOTAL 17,169,226 7,297,057 9,872,169 135%
FMV ADJUSTMENT (GENERAL FUND) - - - 0%
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 202,167 1,590,475 (1,388,308) -87%
- 0%
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS - 0%
DUE TO GENERAL FUND FROM OTHER FUNDS 222,978 217,397 5,581 0%
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 17,594,371 9,104,929 8,489,442 93%
FIXED ASSETS
LAND 11,634,791 11,634,791 - 0%
FIXED ASSETS
LAND IMPROVEMENTS 29,167,208 28,357,507 809,701 3%
LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS 2,011,184 1,098,163 913,021 83%
EQUIPMENT 1,136,728 1,070,014 66,714 6%
EQUIPMENT - COMPUTERS 296,192 296,192 - 0%
EQUIPMENT - AUTOS 573,090 474,688 98,402 21%
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 311,258 349,579 (38,321) -11%
SUBTOTAL 45,130,450 43,280,933 1,849,517 4%
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (18,470,446) (17,002,299) (1,468,146) 9%
SUBTOTAL 26,660,004 26,278,634 381,370 1%
TOTAL ASSETS 44,254,375 35,383,563 8,870,812 25%
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES - GASB 68 1,186,655 1,186,655 - 0%

FOOTNOTES:



CHICO AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND - FUND 2490
BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 2023
Increase (Decrease)
DECEMBER 2023 DECEMBER 2022 $ Change % Change
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 17,940 5,518
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - REFUNDS - - 0
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 17,940 5,518 12,422 225%
ACCRUED EXPENSES
ACCRUED PAYROLL (276,553) 62,170 (338,724) 0%
PAYROLL FEDERAL TAXES 77,447 5,447 72,000 1322%
PAYROLL STATE TAXES 26,029 1,384 24,645 1780%
PAYROLL EMPLOYEE MEDI & FICA 97,187 6,033 91,154 1511%
PAYROLL EMPLOYER MEDI & FICA LIAB 97,094 5,866 91,229 1555%
PAYROLL SDI 683 860 (177) -21%
PAYROLL GARNISHMENTS (2,357) (33,629) 31,272 -93%
UNION DUES - SUPERVISORS (2,442) 94 (2,536) -2709%
UNION DUES - PARKS 3,594 1,662 1,932 0%
457 EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS 4,410 4,094 317 8%
457 ROTH EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS (2,225) - (2,225) 0%
EMPLOYEE VOLUNTARY LIFE/AD&D 25 - 25 0%
EMPLOYEE MEDICAL WITHHOLDINGS 143,663 (1,531) 145,194 -9485%
VOUCHERS PAYABLE ACCRUAL 138,647 - 138,647 0%
ACCRUED EXPENSES 353,008 52,449 300,559 573%
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS FROM GENERAL FUND 4,635,419 - 4,635,419 0%
OTHER LIABILITIES
DEFERRED REVENUE 77,848 877,861 (800,013) -91%
OTHER LIAB - CLASS CLEARING ACCT 2,289 3,423 (1,134) -33%
PREPAID FACILITY TRANSFER (1,091) - (1,091) 0%
SECURITY DEPOSITS 42,312 47,050 (4,738) -10%
TIME EXPIRED HOLDING ACCT 16,806 8,403 8,403 100%
SUBTOTAL 138,163 936,737 (798,574) -85%
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 5,144,530 994,704 4,149,826 417%
LONG-TERM DEBT
NET PENSION LIABILITY 657,142 657,142 - 0%
LIABILITY FOR COMPENSATED ABSENCES 263,428 263,428 - 0%
SUBTOTAL 920,570 920,570 - 0%
TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,065,100 1,915,274 4,149,826 217%
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES - GASB 68 755,205 755,205 - 0%

FUND BALANCE



CHICO AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND - FUND 2490
BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 2023
Increase (Decrease)
DECEMBER 2023 DECEMBER 2022 $ Change % Change
SPENDABLE - COMMITTED
SPENDABLE - COMMITTED - GENERAL RESERVE 2,500,000 2,600,000 (100,000) -4%
SUBTOTAL 2,500,000 2,600,000 (100,000) -4%
SPENDABLE - UNASSIGNED 11,903,308 1,300,774 10,602,534 815%
NON-SPENDABLE 31,188,472 27,479,110 3,709,362 13%
TOTAL FUND BALANCE - GENERAL FUND 45,591,779 31,379,884 14,211,896 45%
NET INCOME (LOSS)
GENERAL FUND 2,678,812 (364,593) 3,043,405 -835%
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 55,090,896 33,685,770
TOTAL NET INCOME (LOSS) 2,678,812 (364,593) 3,043,405 -835%
CURRENT YEAR NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS (1,334,898) 22,618 (1,357,516) -6002%
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 46,935,693 30,992,672 15,943,020 51%




CHICO AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
GENERAL FUND - FUND 2490
DECEMBER 2023
REPRESENTS 50% OF THE YEAR
2023-2024 MONTH 2023-2024 2023-2024 Remaining 2022-2023 2022-2023 2022-2023 DIFF.
BUDGET DECEMBER 2023 % OF BUDGET| YTD % BUDGET Budget BUDGET YTD % BUDGET BY YEAR
REVENUE
FEE BASED PROGRAM INCOME 4,427,500 687,096 0.0% 2,575,737 58.2% 1,851,763 3,526,835 1,789,973 50.8% 785,764
OTHER INCOME 818,500 64,042 0.0% 322,806 39.4% 495,694 664,865 415,273 62.5% (92,467)
RDA PASSTHROUGH 1,600,000 926,076 0.0% 932,541 58.3% 667,459 1,600,000 845,351 52.8% 87,190
INVESTMENT INCOME 100,000 12,091 11.3% 187,622 187.6% - 45,000 - 0.0% 187,622
TAXINCOME / COUNTY 5,150,000 4,526,145 0.0% 4,828,307 93.8% 321,693 4,655,000 2,227,155 47.8% 2,601,152
TOTAL REVENUE 12,096,000 6,215,451 0.1% 8,847,014 73.1% 3,336,608 10,491,700 5,277,753 50.3% 3,569,261
OPERATING EXPENDITURES
SALARIES AND BENEFITS 8,581,325 632,244 5.6% 3,955,295 46.1% 4,626,030 7,320,959 3,442,146 47.0% 513,149
SERVICES AND SUPPLIES 3,170,480 182,449 149.9% 1,793,845 56.6% 1,376,635 3,779,402 1,985,094 52.5% (191,248)
OPERATING TRANSFER OUT 200,000 - - 267,934 -
CONTRIB. TO OTHER AGENCIES 15,000 - 0.0% 12,865 85.8% 2,135 15,000 9,997 66.6% 2,868
CONTINGENCIES 20,000 - 0.0% - 0.0% 20,000 20,000 - 0.0% -
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES 11,986,805 814,693 43.7% 5,762,006 48.1% 6,024,799 11,483,976 5,437,237 47.3% 324,769
NET REVENUE BEFORE SPEC. EXP. 109,195 5,400,757 -4783.5% 3,085,008 - (992,276) (159,484) 3,244,492
SPECIALLY ALLOCATED ITEMS
DEPRECIATION - 406,196 0.0% 406,196 0.0% - - 435,434 0.0% (29,238)
FAIR MARKET VALUE ADJUSTMENT - - 0.0% - 0.0% - - (230,324) 0.0% 230,324
TOTAL SPECIALLY ALLOCATED - 1,220,889 0.0% 406,196 0.0% - - 205,109 0.0% 201,087
REVENUE OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 109,195 4,179,868 -4800.0% 2,678,812 (992,276) (364,593) 3,043,405




CHICO AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT

REVENUE SUMMARY

GENERAL FUND - FUND 2490
DECEMBER 2023

REPRESENTS 50% OF THE YEAR

2023-2024 2023-2024 2023-2024 Remaining 2022-2023 2022-2023 2022-2023 DIFF.
BUDGET DECEMBER 2023 YTD % BUDGET Budget BUDGET YTD % BUDGET BY YEAR

FEE BASED PROGRAM INCOME
AFTER SCHOOL & CAMP PROGRAMS

AFTERSCHOOL 2,730,000 558,322.69 1,366,198 50.0% 1,363,802 2,052,225 1,059,508 51.6% 300,980

CAMPS 448,000 22,441 373,909 83.5% 74,091 301,300 236,722 78.6% 121,135

RECREATION ADMIN 50,000 81,240 162.5% - - - 0.0% -
SUBTOTAL 3,228,000 580,764 1,821,347 56.4% 1,437,893 2,353,525 1,296,229 55.1% 422,114
AQUATICS 165,000 - 56,855 34.5% 108,145 160,570 40,330 25.1% 16,526
CLASSES

GENERAL CLASSES 147,500 21,233 99,480 67.4% 48,020 147,260 80,445 54.6% 7,270

COMMUNITY BAND 2,000 - - 0.0% 2,000 2,000 2,303 115.2% (2,303)

YOUTH CLASSES 50,000 65 7,388 14.8% 42,612 65,000 22,971 35.3% (15,406)
SUBTOTAL 199,500 21,208 106,868 53.6% 44,612 214,260 105,719 49.3% (10,439)
ADULT SPORTS

PROGRAM FEE INCOME 200,000 11,679 128,991 64.5% 71,009 232,942 100,354 231% 22234
SUBTOTAL 200,000 11,679 128,991 64.5% 71,009 232,942 100,354 431% 22,234
NATURE CENTER

PROGRAM FEE INCOME 325,000 5,686 178,433 54.9% 146,567 256,840 157,325 61.3% 21,801
SUBTOTAL 325,000 5,686 178,433 54.9% 146,567 510,980 157,325 30.8% 21,801
ICE RINK

PROGRAM FEE INCOME - 3,725 80,915 0.0% - - - 0.0%
SUBTOTAL - 3,725 80,915 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
OTHER PROGRAMS

SCHOLARSHIPS (25,000) 13,000 (4,388) 17.6% - (25,000) (4,276) 17.1% (112)

SPECIAL EVENTS 50,000 6,997 58,789 117.6% - 30,000 17,720 59.1% 41,069

SENIOR ADULT PROGRAMS 25,000 10,728 12,123 48.5% 12,877 32,500 6,469 19.9% 5,655

YOUTH SPORTS 260,000 33,220 213,992 82.3% 46,008 250,000 170,607 68.2% 43,385
SUBTOTAL 310,000 63,945 319,640 103.1% 58,884 287,500 190,369 66.2% 90,147
TOTAL _FEE BASED PROGRAMS 4,427,500 687,096 2,564,058 57.9% 1,915,130 3,526,835 1,789,973 50.8% 562,383
OTHER INCOME

FACILITY RENTAL INCOME 475,000 46,567 248,075 52.2% 226,925 444,865 216,820 48.7% (5,157)

REBATES & REIMBURSED COSTS 38,500 16,450 17,787 46.2% 30,000 31,520 105.1% (13,733)

REIMBURSEMENTS - CITY PARKS 290,000 - - 0.0% 290,000 180,000 145,841 81.0% (145,841)

MISCELLANEOUS 5,000 1,025 51,294 1025.9% - - 11,876 0.0% 39,418

ENDOWMENTS 10,000 - 4,606 46.1% 5,394 10,000 5,597 56.0% (990)

DONATIONS - 1 1,045 0.0% - - 3,620 0.0% (2,575)
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 818,500 64,042 322,807 39.4% 522,319 664,865 415,273 62.5% (128,879)
REVENUE FROM OTHER AGENCIES

RDA PASSTHROUGH 1,600,000 926,076 932,541 58.3% 667,459 1,600,000 845,351 52.8% (838,887)

INVESTMENT INCOME 100,000 12,001 187,623 187.6% - 45,000 - 0.0% 175,531

TAX INCOME / COUNTY 5,150,000 4,526,145 4,826,757 93.7% 323,243 4,655,000 2,227,155 47.8% (1,926,543)

TAX INCOME - - 1,550 0.0% - - - 0.0% 1,550
TOTAL REVENUE FROM OTHER AGENCIES 6,850,000 5,464,313 5,948,471 86.8% 990,702 6,300,000 3,072,506 48.8% (2,588,348)
TOTAL REVENUE 12,096,000 6,215,451 8,883,412 73.4% 3,428,151 10,491,700 5,277,753 50.3% (2,154,844)




CHICO AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT

SALARIES AND BENEFITS SUMMARY
GENERAL FUND - FUND 2490
DECEMBER 2023

REPRESENTS 50% OF THE YEAR

2023-2024 DECEMBER 2023-2024 2023-2024 2022-2023 2022-2023 2022-2023 DIFF.
BUDGET 2023 YTD % BUDGET BUDGET YTD % BUDGET BY YEAR
SALARIES
FULL-TIME SALARIES 3,500,000 410,639 1,879,481 53.7% 3,055,000 1,508,170 49.4% (39,328)
PART-TIME SALARIES 3,425,000 138,119 1,346,214 39.3% 2,731,000 1,296,735 47.5% (88,640)
ACCUMULATED LEAVE 40,000 - - 0.0% 41,000 - 0.0% -
INSTRUCTORS 10,000 6,009 8,567 85.7% 53,000 37,342 70.5% (28,775)
SUBTOTAL 6,975,000 554,767 3,234,262 46.4% 5,880,000 2,842,247 48.3%|  (156,744)
BENEFITS
FICA 537,075 41,980 246,532 45.9% 445,000 206,863 46.5% (2,311)
RETIREMENT 625,000 39,278 363,533 58.2% 629,000 364,218 57.9% (39,963)
HEALTH INSURANCE 645,000 26,779 174,566 27.1% 565,400 229,600 40.6% (81,813)
UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 20,000 - - 0.0% 30,000 - 0.0% -
* WORKERS COMP INSURANCE 120,000 - 134,851 112.4% 120,000 106,963 89.1% 27,888
ALLOCATION TO OTHER FUNDS (340,750) (30,560) (183,362) 53.8% (348,441) (307,746) 88.3% 154,944
SUBTOTAL 1,606,325 77,477 736,121 45.8% 1,440,959 599,899 41.6% 58,745
TOTAL SALARIES AND BENEFITS 8,581,325 632,244 | 3,970,383 46.3% 7,320,959 3,442,146 47.0% (97,998)

* Workers Comp Insurance is paid in July for the Fiscal Year
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CHICO AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT

SERVICES AND SUPPLIES SUMMARY

GENERAL FUND - FUND 2490
DECEMBER 2023
REPRESENTS 50% OF THE YEAR

2023-2024 DECEMBER 2023-2024 2023-2024 Remaining 2022-2023 2022-2023 2022-2023 DIFF.
BUDGET 2023 YTD % BUDGET Budget BUDGET YTD % BUDGET BY YEAR
SERVICES AND SUPPLIES
MARKETING 50,000 11,592 29,511 59.0% 20,489 44,000 9,945 22.6% 7,974
UNIFORM APPAREL 25,000 7,253 12,299 49.2% 12,701 8,000 6,722 84.0% (1,675)
PROGRAM APPAREL 54,500 4,892 9,131 16.8% 45,369 - 5,793 0.0% (1,553)
COMMUNICATIONS 70,000 8,862 27,549 39.4% 42,451 52,358 28,853 55.1% (10,166)
* INSURANCE 340,600 R 371,571 109.1% y 270,000 292,512 108.3% 79,058
TECHNOLOGY SOFTWARE 100,000 4,858 64,878 64.9% 35,122 105,000 45,286 43.1% 7,534
TECHNOLOGY HARDWARE 30,000 12,324 29,495 98.3% 505 30,000 19,105 63.7% (1,933)
EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 50,500 2,789 27,280 54.0% 23,220 23,250 15,133 65.1% 9,358
EQUIPMENT 44,500 1,585 66,640 149.8% - - y 0.0%
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 25,000 713 9,596 38.4% 15,404 18,000 10,583 58.8% (1,700)
STRUCTURE & GROUNDS 250,000 13,736 78,099 31.2% 171,901 190,950 81,046 42.4% (16,683)
VANDALISM 5,000 - 1,716 34.3% 3,284 5,460 1,098 20.1% 618
MEMBERSHIP/PERIODICALS - - 9,000 0.0% - - - 0.0% 9,000
SERVICES 506,000 24,475 229,280 45.3% 276,720 0.0%
CONTRACT SERVICES 490,880 17,687 309,152 63.0% 181,728 716,616 270,960 37.8% 20,505
LEGAL NOTICES 1,000 210 505 50.5% 495 1,000 254 25.4% 41
RECRUITEMENT 20,000 107 7,576 37.9% 12,424 25,000 5,329 21.3% 2,141
RENT/LEASE STRUCTURES 2,000 . 1,000 50.0% 1,000 2,000 500 25.0% 500
SMALL TOOLS 25,000 1,088 9,335 37.3% 15,665 3,900 11,202 287.2% (2,955)
RENT/LEASE EQUIPMENT - 230 1,230 0.0% - 2,000 500 25.0% -
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 40,000 - 8,975 22.4% 31,025 28,000 15,980 57.1% 1,095
MISCELLAEOUS 10,000 380 2,854 28.5% 7,146 10,000 3,593 35.9% (1,118)
SUPPLIES 340,000 9,404 125,306 36.9% 214,694 0.0%
HOSPITALITY 20,000 - 3,602 18.0% 16,398 5,000 2,751 55.0% (1,360)
FUEL 60,000 420 35,596 59.3% 24,404 50,000 25,590 51.2% 9,586
TRANSPORTATION 4,000 y 4,313 107.8% y 3,700 1,980 53.5% 2,333
DIST OFFICE BOARD MTG EXP 10,000 600 2,400 24.0% 7,600 10,000 3,175 31.8% (1,375)
USE TAX 1,500 - - 0.0% 1,500 1,500 . 0.0% -
TRAVEL 10,000 1,260 1,260 12.6% 8,740 10,000 2,313 23.1% (2,313)
SUBTOTAL 2,585,480 124,465 1,479,148 57.2% 1,160,985 1,615,734 860,202 53% 107,810
UTILITIES
WATER 160,000 23,246 105,438 65.9% 54,562 151,521 58,890 38.9% 23,302
ELECTRICITY 330,000 28,967 205,943 62.4% 124,057 309,072 181,370 58.7% (4,394)
GAS 75,000 5,772 11,847 15.8% 63,153 79,992 20,284 25.4% (14,209)
SEWER 20,000 5,074 25.4% 14,926 7,349 4,147 56.4% 928
SUBTOTAL 585,000 57,985 328,303 56.1% 256,697 547,934 264,690 48.3% 5,628
TOTAI SERVICE & SUPPLY 3,170,480 182,449 1,807,451 57.0% 1,426,682 3,779,402 1,985,094 52.5%| 221,249

* Insurance is paid in Julv for the Fiscal Year
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CHICO AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS / FIXED ASSETS SUMMARY
DECEMBER 2023

REPRESENTS 50% OF THE YEAR

ORIGINAL REVISED
2023-2024 2023-2024 2023-2024 2023-2024 Remaining
BUDGET BUDGET YTD % BUDGET Budget
CAPITAL PROJECTS
DISTRICT WIDE - ADA Compliance Upgrades 135,000 135,000 4,045 3.0% 130,955
DISTRICT WIDE - Deferred Maintenance 150,000 150,000 22,916 15.3% 127,084
DISTRICT WIDE - Irrigation Smart Controller Upgrades 115,000 115,000 5,700 5.0% 109,300
CARD CENTER - Roof & Exterior Repair/Painting 200,000 200,000 - 0.0% 200,000
COMMUNITY PARK - Field House Wall Padding 27,600 27,600 - 0.0% 27,600
DEGARMO PARK - Replace Soccer Goals 25,000 25,000 24,967 99.9% 33
LAKESIDE - Blinds 17,250 17,250 13,178 76.4% 4,072
LAKESIDE - Carpet Replacement 45,000 45,000 - 0.0% 45,000
ROTARY PARK - Replace 5-12 Play Structure 155,250 155,250 - 0.0% -
AQUATICS - Design Phase 1,700,000 1,700,000 360,487 21.2% 1,339,513
LAKESIDE - Pernament Projectors 23,000 23,000 6,225 27.1% 16,775
COMMUNITY PARK - Renovate & Expand Maintenance Hub 1,300,000 1,300,000 7,811 0.6% 1,292,189
COMMUNITY PARK - Bocce Ball Court 856,000 856,000 893,858 104.4% -
DFJ - Chapman Park Renovation 3,112,000 3,112,000 2,334,627 75.0% 777,373
HOOKER OAK - Playground 192,000 192,000 807 0.4% 191,193
PETERSON - Playground 198,240 198,240 10,035 5.1% 188,205
CARD CENTER - ADA Upgrades - Parking Lot 112,700 112,700 76,506 67.9% 36,194
SUBTOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 8,364,040 8,364,040 3,761,160 45.0% 4,485,488
FIELD/PROGRAM EQUIPMENT
DeGarmo Painter Replacement 8,050 8,050 6,786 84.3% 1,264
Gator Replacement 13,500 13,500 13,261 98.2% 239
Wood Chipper Replacement 85,000 85,000 60,774 71.5% 24,226
New Standing Mower 15,000 15,000 12,521 83.5% 2,479
New Gator (Wildwood) 13,500 13,500 13,261 98.2% 239
Movie Equipment 19,000 19,000 18,000 94.7% 1,000
SUBTOTAL FIELD/PROGRAM EQUIPMENT 154,050 154,050 124,602 80.9% 29,448
VEHICLES
New Vehicle (Roving Crew) 40,000 40,000 38,938 97.3% 1,062
Vehicle Replacement (2 Trucks) 80,000 80,000 73,951 92.4% 6,049
Vehicle Replacement (Utility Truck) 75,000 75,000 69,986 93.3% 5,014
Trailer 15,000 15,000 11,104 74.0% 3,897
SUBTOTAL VEHICLES 210,000 210,000 193,979 92.4% 16,021
TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS/FIXED ASSETS 8,728,090 | 8,728,090 | 4,079,741 46.7%| 4,648,349
CAPITAL PROJECTS REIMBURSEMENT
0.0% -
Prop 68 Grant 2,612,000 2,612,000 1,490,498 57.1% 1,121,502
Dev. Impact Fees 3,229,000 3,229,000 1,254,345 38.8% 1,974,655
Neighborhood Impact Fees 706,250 706,250 - 0.0% 706,250
CPRS Grant 150,000 150,000 - 0.0% 150,000
General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance 2,030,840 2,030,840 - 0.0% 2,030,840
TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS REIMBURSEMENT 8,728,090 8,728,090 2,744,843 31.4% 5,983,247
TOTAL EXPENSE (OVER) UNDER REIMBURSEMENTS - - (1,334,898) 0.0% 1,334,898




Staff Report FI-24-007
Finance Agenda Item E

CARD Regular Agenda Item 3.3
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chico Area Recreation & Park District

Finance Committee

STAFF REPORT

DATE: February 22, 2024
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Annabel Grimm

SUBJECT: Neighborhood Parks Levy Administration

BACKGROUND

The Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 requires that an annual Engineer’s Report is prepared
by a licensed professional engineer and establishes other requirements for the continuation of
the assessments. This Resolution directs SCI Consulting Group to prepare the Engineer’'s Report
for the Oak Way, Amber Grove/Greenfield, and Baroni Neighborhood Park and Open Space (No.
LLD 001-05) Landscape and Lighting Assessment Districts (the ‘Districts’) as the first step in a
three-step process in the levying the annual assessments for fiscal year 2024-25.

Each year, an updated Engineer’'s Report, including updated budgets, scope of services, current
legal justifications, and rate adjustments should be prepared by a California licensed civil engineer.
SCI Consulting Group will provide professional assessment engineering and assessment
administration services to justify the continued collection of the Districts’ assessments. The
services provided by SCI will include the preparation of the Engineer's Report and preliminary
assessment roll with the specific assessment amount for each parcel. The Engineer’s Report will
be presented to the Board for preliminary approval in April of this year.

The services provided by SCI Consulting Group includes the tasks required for the year-round
administration of the Districts’ assessments, including comprehensive property base auditing and
levy accuracy confirmation, on a parcel-by-parcel basis, to ensure that the Districts receive the
most accurate assessment revenues and directly responding to property owner inquiries on toll
free taxpayer assistance line. SCl's services will also include evaluation of the most current legal
requirements and developments for benefit assessments, including any court decisions for benefit
assessments or Proposition 218, and updates to the assessment justification and engineering
findings, if appropriate.

Amber Grove/Greenfield Landscape and Lighting Assessment District

The Amber Grove/Greenfield Landscape and Lighting Assessment District was approved by
property owners in 1994 to fund the maintenance and operations of the Amber
Grove/Greenfield Park.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS STAFF REPORT

Oak Way Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
The Oak Way Landscape and Lighting Assessment District was approved by property owners in
1997 to continue to fund the maintenance and operations of Oak Way Park.

Baroni Neighborhood Park and Open Space (No. LLD 001-05) Landscape and Lighting
Assessment District

In 2006, property owners approved the Baroni Neighborhood Park and Open Space (No. LLD
001-05) Landscape and Lighting Assessment District to provide funding for the maintenance
and operations for the Baroni Neighborhood Park, adjacent open space areas and related trails
system within the District.

ANALYSIS

In order to continue to levy the assessments, the Board will need to adopt the resolution to
direct SCI Consulting Group, the assessment engineer, to prepare an Engineer’s Report for the
upcoming fiscal year. This Engineer’'s Report will include the special and general benefit findings
to support the assessments, the updated proposed assessments for each parcel in the Districts,
the proposed budget for the assessments, and the proposed assessments per single-family
equivalent for fiscal year 2024-25. After the Engineer’'s Report and assessment roll are
completed, they will be brought back to the Board for your review and consideration. If the
Board preliminarily approves the Reports, a noticed public hearing will be subsequently held to
allow the public to provide input on the proposed budgets, services and assessments, and to
allow the Board to make a final decision on the continuation of these important assessments.
The preliminary Engineer’s Report is scheduled to be presented to the Board in April.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board approves the Resolution that would direct SCI Consulting
Group to prepare the Engineer’'s Report for the Oak Way, Amber Grove/Greenfield, and Baroni
Neighborhood Park and Open Space (No. LLD 001-05) Landscape and Lighting Assessment
Districts for fiscal year 2024-25.
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Chico Area Recreation and Park District
Oak Way, Amber Grove/Greenfield, and Baroni Neighborhood Parks
Levy Administration - Fiscal Year 2024-25 (Proposed Timeline)

January February March April
s m t w t f s s m t w t f s s m t w t f s s m t w t f s

1T 2 3 4 5 6 1T 2 3 1 2 1T 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 34 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13
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28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30

31
May June July August
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1T 2 3 4 1 1T 2 3 4 5 6 1T 2 3
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12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17
19 20 21 2223 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 31
30

Action Items Due Date
Board Action: Resolution Directing the Preparation of the Annual Report February 22

Preliminary assessments determined; Prepare budgets and determine assessment rates; March 01

Review and update other Engineer’s Report items

Provide Engineer's Report and resolution for April board meeting March 18
Board Action: Resolution of Intention to Continue the Assessments, Preliminarily Aoril 25

ri

Approving Engineer’s Report and Providing of Notice of Hearing. P

Publish Notice of Public Hearing (must occur 10 days before Public Hearing)

Provide Resolution and Engineer’s Report for May Board Meeting May 06
Board Action: Public Hearing and approval of resolution approving Engineer’s Report and
levying annual assessments. (Resolution levying annual assessment must be approved prior to submitting the May 23
assessment roll to the County Auditor)

Submit levy roll to County Auditor August 10

Confirmation of final levies with County Auditor

Late August

Answer property owner inquiries and associated tasks

Sept 2023-June 2024

All regular Board meetings are held on the 4th Thursday of each month at 6 pm.

Information to District for Board Meeting

Board of Education Meeting

Levy Due Date to County




C.A.R.D

Chico Area Recreation & Park District

RESOLUTION 24-004 OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
CHICO AREA RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
A RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE PREPARATION OF THE ENGINEER'S REPORTS FOR THE
CONTINUATION OF THREE (3) LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS: OAK
WAY, AMBER GROVE/GREENFIELD, AND BARONI NEIGHBORHOOD PARK AND OPEN SPACE
(No. LLD 001-05)

1. On January 13, 1994, the Board of Directors of the Chico Area Recreation and Park District,
acting as the legislative body of the Amber Grove/Greenfield Landscaping and Lighting
Assessment District, ordered through Resolution 94-01 the formation of an assessment
district pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, known as
the Amber Grove/Greenfield Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District, for the purpose
of financing certain park and recreational improvements as specified in the District's Master
Plan and for the purpose of funding maintenance operations of those facilities.

2. On July 10, 1997, the property owners within the Oak Way Landscaping and Lighting
Assessment District approved the continuation of the assessment district for the purpose of
financing certain park and recreational improvements and funding maintenance operations
of those facilities.

3. OnJune 20, 2006, the City Council of the City of Chico, acting as the legislative body for the
Baroni Park and Open Space Landscaping and Lighting District No. LLD 001-05, ordered
through Resolution 70-06 the formation of an assessment district pursuant to the provisions
of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, known as the Baroni Park and Open Space
Landscaping and Lighting District No. LLD 001-05, for the purpose of funding maintenance
operations and recreational improvements as described in the District's Master Plan.

4. The purpose of the Oak Way Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District is for the
installation, maintenance and servicing of improvements to the Oak Way Park, generally
described as the installation, maintenance and servicing of public facilities, including but not
limited to, playground equipment, irrigation and sprinkler systems, landscaping, turf, park
grounds, park facilities, landscape corridors, trails, ponds, wetlands preserve areas, fencing,
piers, signage, benches, tables, and all necessary appurtenances, and labor, materials,
supplies, utilities and equipment, as applicable, for property within the Oak Way
Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District that is maintained by the Chico Area
Recreation and Park District. Installation means the construction of recreational
improvements, including, but not limited to land preparation, such as grading, leveling,
cutting and filling, sod, landscaping, irrigation systems, playground equipment, recreational
facilities and trails. Maintenance means the furnishing of services and materials for the
ordinary and usual maintenance, operation and servicing of said improvements, including
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repair, removal, or replacement of all or part of any improvement; providing for the life,
growth, health and beauty of landscaping; and cleaning, sandblasting and painting of walls
and other improvements to remove or cover graffiti, and monitoring of wetlands preserve
areas. Servicing means the furnishing of electric current or energy for the operation or
lighting of any improvements, and water for irrigation of any landscaping or the
maintenance of any other improvements.

. The purpose of the Amber Grove/Greenfield Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District is
for the installation, maintenance and servicing of improvements to the Amber
Grove/Greenfield Park, generally described as the installation, maintenance and servicing of
public facilities, including but not limited to, playground equipment, irrigation and sprinkler
systems, landscaping, turf, park grounds, park facilities, landscape corridors, trails, ponds,
wetlands preserve areas, fencing, piers, signage, benches, tables, and all necessary
appurtenances, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities and equipment, as applicable, for
property within the Amber Grove/Greenfield Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District
that is maintained by the Chico Area Recreation and Park District. Installation means the
construction of recreational improvements, including, but not limited to, land preparation,
such as grading, leveling, cutting and filling, sod, landscaping, irrigation systems, playground
equipment, recreational facilities and trails. Maintenance means the furnishing of services
and materials for the ordinary and usual maintenance, operation and servicing of said
improvements, including repair, removal, or replacement of all or part of any improvement;
providing for the life, growth, health and beauty of landscaping; and cleaning, sandblasting
and painting of walls and other improvements to remove or cover graffiti, and monitoring of
wetlands preserve areas. Servicing means the furnishing of electric current or energy for the
operation or lighting of any improvements, and water for irrigation of any landscaping or
the maintenance of any other improvements.

. The purpose of the Baroni Park and Open Space Landscaping and Lighting District No. LLD
001-05 is for the installation, maintenance and servicing of improvements to the Baroni
Neighborhood Park, adjacent open space areas and related trails system within the District,
generally described as the installation, maintenance and servicing of public facilities,
including but not limited to, playground equipment, irrigation and sprinkler systems,
landscaping, turf, park grounds, park facilities, landscape corridors, trails, ponds, wetlands
preserve areas, fencing, piers, signage, benches, tables, and all necessary appurtenances, and
labor, materials, supplies, utilities and equipment, as applicable, for property within the
Baroni Park and Open Space Landscaping and Lighting District No. LLD 001-05 that is
maintained by the Chico Area Recreation and Park District. Installation means the
construction of recreational improvements, including, but not limited to, land preparation,
such as grading, leveling, cutting and filling, sod, landscaping, irrigation systems, sidewalks,
and drainage; lights, playground equipment, play courts, and public restrooms; the
maintenance and servicing of both, of any of the foregoing; the acquisition of land for park,
recreational, or open-space purposes Maintenance means the furnishing of services and
materials for the ordinary and usual maintenance, operation and servicing of said
improvements, including repair, removal, or replacement of all or part of any improvement;
providing for the life, growth, health and beauty of landscaping; and cleaning, sandblasting
and painting of walls and other improvements to remove or cover graffiti, and monitoring of
wetlands preserve areas. Servicing means the furnishing of electric current or energy, gas or
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other illuminating agent for the operation or lighting of any improvements, and water for
irrigation of any landscaping or the maintenance of any other improvements.

7. SCI Consulting Group is hereby designated as Engineer of Work for purposes of these
proceedings and is hereby ordered to prepare an Engineer's Report in accordance with
Article 4 of Chapter 1 of the Act and Article XIIID of the California Constitution. Upon
completion, the Engineer shall file the Engineer's Report with the Secretary of the Governing
Board for submission to the Board.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of CARD hereby direct the
preparation of the Engineer’s Report for the continuation of the aforementioned Landscape and
Lighting Assessment Districts.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Chico Area
Recreation and Park District on the 22" day of February 2024 by the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:
ATTEST:
Michael McGinnis, Chair Holli Drobny
Board of Directors Clerk of the Board of Directors
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Staff Report FI-24-005
Finance Agenda Item D

CARD Regular Agenda Item 3.4
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chico Area Recreation & Park District

Finance Committee

STAFF REPORT

DATE: February 22, 2024
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Angie Carpenter

SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Audit

BACKGROUND
The attached audit report for fiscal year 2022-2023 is submitted for review and comment.
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Chavan and Associates, llp

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
of the Chico Area Recreation and Park District
Chico, California

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Chico
Area Recreation and Park District (the “District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023 and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of business-type activities of Chico Area
Recreation and Park District, as of June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the
District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Districts’s
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ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are
issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement
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the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplemental Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s financial statements as a whole. The supplementary
information listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not
a required part of the financial statements. These schedules are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements. This information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on it.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January
24,2024 on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

C LA UP

January 24, 2024
Morgan Hill, California
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Chico Area Recreation and Park District Management’s Discussion and Analysis

INTRODUCTION

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is a required section of the District’s annual
financial report, as shown in the overview below. The purpose of the MD&A is to present a
discussion and analysis of the District’s financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on
June 30, 2023. This report will (1) focus on significant financial issues, (2) provide an overview of
the District’s financial activity, (3) identify changes in the District’s financial position, (4) identify
any individual issues or concerns, and (5) provide descriptions of significant asset and liability
activity.

This information, presented in conjunction with the Basic Financial Statements, is intended to
provide a comprehensive understanding of the District’s operations and financial standing.

Required Components of the Annual Financial Report

Management’s Basic
Discussion & Analysis Financial Statements
Notes to the
Financial Statements

FISCAL YEAR 2023 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e Total net position increased by $6,942,378 from the last fiscal year.

e The District's assets exceeded its liabilities by $45,182,094, excluding deferred inflows and
outflows of resources. Assets and deferred outflows of resources totaled $52,319,410 and
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources were $4,773,101.

e Net position consisted of $28,329,215 classified as net investment in capital assets; $11,862,099
as restricted; and $7,354,995 as unrestricted net position.

e Total revenues were $18,352,825 which consisted of operating revenues totaling $11,941,106
and nonoperating revenues totaling $6,411,719.

e Total District operating expenses were $11,410,447.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This annual report includes the Management's discussion and analysis report, the independent

auditor’s report and the basic financial statements of the District. The financial statements also
include notes that explain the information in the financial statements in more detail.
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Chico Area Recreation and Park District Management’s Discussion and Analysis

THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Financial Statements of the District report information about the District’s accounting methods
similar to those used by private sector companies. These statements offer short-term and long-term
financial information about its activities. The Statement of Fund Net Position includes all of the
District’s assets and liabilities and provides information about the nature and amounts of
investments in resources (assets) and obligations to creditors (liabilities).

All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position. This statement reflects the result of the District’s
operations over the past year as well as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The final required Financial Statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. The primary purpose of this
statement is to provide information about the District’s cash receipts and cash payments during the
reporting period. The statement reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash
resulting from operational, capital and investing activities. It also provides answers to questions
such as where did cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in cash
balance during the reporting period.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes can be found
immediately following the fund financial statements.

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Required supplementary information, other than the MD&A, follows the Notes and includes pension
schedules and other postemployment benefit schedules.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Combining and individual fund statements are included to provide additional information of the
proprietary funds that constitute the District’s basic financial statements.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT

One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is “Is the District better off
or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position report information about the District’s activities in
a way that will help answer this question. These two statements report the net position of the
District and changes in them. The difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources (net position) is one way to measure financial health or
financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net position are one indicator
of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, you will need to consider
other non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions, population growth, and new or
changed government legislation.

Page 6



Chico Area Recreation and Park District Management’s Discussion and Analysis

NET POSITION

The following table summarized the District’s ending net position:

| Table 1 - Net Position

Dollar Percent
2023 2022 Change Change
Assets
Current and other assets $ 21,543973 $ 16,808,611  $ 4,735,362 28.2%
Capital assets - net 28,329,215 26,714,068 1,615,147 6.0%
Total Assets $ 49,873,188 $ 43,522,679 $ 6,350,509 14.6%
Deferred Outflows of Resources 2,446,222 1,186,655 $ 1,259,567 106.1%
Liabilities
Current and other liabilities 1,348,509 2,429,628 $ (1,081,119) -44.5%
Noncurrent liabilities 3,342,585 920,570 2,422,015 263.1%
Total Liabilities $ 4,691,094 §$ 3,350,198 § 1,340,896 40.0%
Deferred Inflows of Resources 82,007 755205 $ (673,198) -89.1%
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets $ 28329215 $ 26,714,068 $ 1,615,147 6.0%
Restricted 11,862,099 6,064,991 5,797,108 95.6%
Unrestricted 7,354,995 7,824,872 (469,877) -6.0%
Total Net Position $ 47,546,309 $ 40,603,931 $ 6,942,378 17.1%

As of June 30, 2023, the largest portion of the Authority's total net position was the net investment
in capital assets, which increased by $1,615,147, mostly because of construction in progress
completion that increased leasehold improvements, and structures and improvements by $1,673,264,
net of depreciation totaling $844,178.

Noncurrent liabilities increased by $2,422,015 primarily due to an increase in the net pension
liability of $2,459,755.
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Chico Area Recreation and Park District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Table 2 below summarizes the District’s changes in net position for the year.

| Table 2 - Statement of Changes in Net Position

Dollar Percent
Functions/Programs 2023 2022 Change Change
Operating Revenues
Charges for services 3,998,689 3,292,589 $ 706,100 21.45%
Developer fees 6,030,860 3,381,107 2,649,753 78.37%
Intergovernmental City Parks 635,552 18,195 617,357 3393.00%
Rentals 464,994 410,249 54,745 13.34%
Other revenues 811,011 189,277 621,734 328.48%
Total Operating Revenues 11,941,106 7,291,417 4,649,689 63.77%
Operating Expenses
Salaries and benefits 7,619,303 4,929,354 2,689,949 54.57%
Services and supplies 2,936,967 2,378,815 558,152 23.46%
Contributions to other agencies 9,997 6,411 3,586 55.94%
Depreciation and amortization 844,180 858,504 (14,324) -1.67%
Total Operating Expenses 11,410,447 8,173,084 3,237,363 39.61%
Operating Income (Loss) 530,659 (881,667) 1,412,326 160.19%
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Property Taxes 4,827,855 4,509,289 318,566 7.06%
Assessments 163,585 160,388 3,197 1.99%
RDA pass through taxes 1,734,349 1,593,211 141,138 8.86%
Investment earnings (314,070) 6,407 (320,477) -5001.98%
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 6,411,719 6,269,295 142,424 2.27%
Increase / (Decrease) in Net Position 6,942 378 5,387,628 1,554,750 28.86%
Net Position, Beginning of Year 40,603,931 35,216,303 5,387,628 15.30%
Net Position, End of Year $ 47,546,309 $ 40,603,931 §$§ 6,942,378 17.10%

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position reflects the District's
operating and non-operating revenues and expenses. Total revenues and expenses increased over

prior year because of the following:

e Total operating revenues increased by $4,649,689 (63.77%). This was mainly the result of
community park impact fees from the City of Chico reported as developer fees totaling
$2,649,753, and an increase in service fees revenue totaling $706,100.

e Total nonoperating revenues increased by $142,424 (2.27%). This was mainly the result of an

increase in property tax revenue totaling $318,566.

e Total operating expenses increased by $3,237,363 (54.57%). This was mainly the result of an

increase in salaries and benefits of $2,689,949.
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Chico Area Recreation and Park District Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Revenues

The following chart summarizes the changes in revenues by category during 2022/23:

TOTAL REVENUE BY CATEGORY

Other revenues
4%

Investment earnings

Charges for services
21%

Property Taxes
25%

Developer fees

32%
Rentals Intergovernmental

3% City Parks

Significant changes in revenues consisted of the following:

e Charges for Services increased by $706,100 (21.45%) most of which was related to an increase
in activities post of the COVID 19 pandemic.

e Developer fees increased by $2,649,753 (78.37%) mainly as a result of new community park
impact fees from the City of Chico.

e Property taxes increased by $318,566 (7.06%) from increases in property values.

e RDA pass through taxes increased by $141,138 (8.86%) because the assessment values for
redevelopment properties increased.
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Chico Area Recreation and Park District Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Expenses

The following chart summarizes the changes in expenses by function during 2022/23:

TOTAL EXPENSES BY CATEGORY

Depreciation and
amortization
7%

Services and supplies
26%

Salaries and benefits
67%

Significant changes in expenses consisted of the following:

e Salaries and benefits expenses increased by $2,689,949 (54.57%) mostly because of CalPERS
negative rate of return.

e Services and supplies expenses increased by $558,152 (23.46%) mostly because of increased
activities and operations.
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Chico Area Recreation and Park District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

A summary of the changes in net position by sub-fund is presented below:

l

Table 3 - Summary of Changes in Net Positions

General Baroni Oak Way Peterson Park Community
Fund Park Park Park Development  Park Impact Total
Total Revenues $12,345,195 § 98,738 § 23,177 $§ 42,596 $ 23268 $ 54819,860 $ 18,352,834
Total Expenditures 10,987,667 145,724 150,842 126,223 - - 11,410,456
Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 1,357,528 (46,986) (127,665) (83,627) 23,268 5,819,860 6,942,378
Transfers In - 967 127,665 83,627 - - 212,259
Transfers Out (212,259) - - - - - (212,259)
Change in Net Position 1,145,269 (46,019) - - 23,268 5,819,860 6,942,378
Beginning Net Position 34,538,940 83,428 - - 428,493 5,553,070 40,603,931
Ending Net Position $35,684,209 § 37409 S - $ - $ 451,761 $ 11,372,930 $ 47,546,309
CAPITAL ASSETS
The following table summarizes the District’s capital assets at the end of the year:
| Table 4 - Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation |
Dollar
2023 2022 Change % Change
Land $ 11,634,791 $ 11,634,791  §$ - 0.00%
Construction in progress 782,657 349,579 433,078 123.89%
Leasehold Improvements 1,136,586 249,447 887,139 355.64%
Structures and improvements 14,390,371 14,331,675 58,696 0.41%
Parks and Recreation equipment 204,296 77,844 126,452 162.44%
Vehicles 180,514 70,732 109,782 155.21%
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 28329215 $ 26,714,068 $ 1,615,147 6.05%

Additional detail and information on capital asset activity is described in the note 3 to the financial

statements.

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The following table summarizes the District’s liabilities at the end of the year:

| Table S - Long-Term Liabilities

Governmental Activities

Dollar
2023 2022 Change % Change
Net Pension Liability 3,116,897 657,142 2,459,755 374.31%
Compensated Absences 225,688 263,428 (37,740) -14.33%
Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 3,342,585 $§ 920,570 $ 2,422,015 263.10%

Additional detail and information on long-term debt activity is described in the note 4 to the financial

statements.
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Chico Area Recreation and Park District Management’s Discussion and Analysis

EcoNOoMIC FACTORS AND OUTLOOK

The general economy of Butte County, California has begun to recover from the impacts of COVID-19.
The unemployment rate for Butte County was 5.1%, and 4%, respectively, at June 2023 and June 2022.
The District has approved a balanced budget for the 2023-2024 year. The District also continues to focus
on providing quality recreation programs and well-maintained parks to the Chico community. The costs of
these programs are consistently monitored to provide reasonably priced services to the community.

REQUEST FOR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s customers, investors and other interested parties
with an overview of the District’s financial operations and financial condition. Should the reader have
questions regarding the information included in this report or wish to request additional financial
information, please contact the General Manger, Chico Recreation and Park District, 545 Vallombosa
Avenue, Chico, CA 95926.
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Chico Area Recreation and Park District
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2023

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets
Capital assets - net

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension adjustments

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and liabilities
Program advances
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension adjustments

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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20,817,862
713,590
12,521

21,543,973
28,329,215

49,873,188

2,446,222

8,970
328,117
1,011,423

1,348,510

225,688
3,116,897

3,342,585

4,691,095

82,007

28,329,215
11,862,099
7,354,994

47,546,308




Chico Area Recreation and Park District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Operating revenues:
Program service fees
Developer fees
Intergovernmental City Parks
Rentals
Other revenue
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits
Services and supplies
Contributions to other agencies
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Interest income

Assessment fees

Property taxes

RDA pass through taxes

Net non-operating revenues (expenses)

Change in net position

Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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3,998,689
6,030,860
635,552
464,994
811,018

11,941,113

7,619,300
2,936,978
9,997
844,179

11,410,454

530,659

(314,071)
163,585

4,827,855

1,734,349

6,411,718

6,942,377

40,603,931

$
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Chico Area Recreation and Park District
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers $ 3,953,956
Receipts from other governments 6,666,412
Other Receipts 1,276,012
Payments to suppliers (2,997,163)
Payments to employees (7,438,420)
Other Payments (9,997)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 1,450,800

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (2,459,326)

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities (2,459,326)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from assessments 163,585
Receipts from taxes 4,827,855
Receipts from RDA pass through taxes 1,734,349

Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital and related financing activities 6,725,789

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received (314,071)

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities (314,071)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,403,192
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fiscal year 15,414,670
Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal year $ 20,817,862

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) $ 530,659
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 844,179
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 661,846
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 5,984
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources (1,259,567)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (66,169)
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll and liabilities (308,369)
Increase (decrease) in program advances (706,579)
Increase(decrease) in compensated absences (37,740)
Increase(decrease) in deferred inflows of resources (673,198)
Increase(decrease) in net pension liability 2,459,754
Net cash provided by (used for) operations $ 1,450,800

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Page 16



Chico Area Recreation and Park District

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Financial Reporting Entity

The Chico Area Recreation and Park District (the District) is a political subdivision of the state of
California and provides recreation services to the residents of the Chico area of Butte county. The
District was formed under section 5708-5791 of the Public Resources Code, Article V and is governed
by a five-member Board of Directors elected by the voters of the District. A salaried general manager
administrates the operation of the District in accordance with policies adopted be the Board of
Directors.

Although the nucleus of a financial reporting entity usually is a primary government, an organization
other than a primary government, such as a stand-alone government, may serve as the nucleus for its
financial reporting entity when the stand-alone government provides separately issued financial
statements. A stand-alone government is a legally separate governmental organization that does not
have a separately elected governing body and does not meet the definition of a component unit. The
District meets the criteria as a stand-alone government, and accordingly, is accounted for and reported
on as though it were a primary government.

Component units are defined as legally separate organizations for which the primary government are
financially accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their
relationship with a primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The District considered all potential component
units in determining what organizations should be included in the financial statements. Since no other
entities are controlled by, or rely upon the District, the reporting entity consists solely of the District.
Based on these criteria, there are no component units to include in the District's financial statements.

The activities of the District include three recreational facility park sub-funds and a park development
sub-fund with the balance accounted for in the general operating fund. However, all funds and sub-
funds are reported as one fund in the financial statements with separate sub-fund information reported
as supplementary information.

Basis of Presentation

Basic Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board is the acknowledged
standard setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting standards followed by
governmental entities in the United States.

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
display information about the District. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as interest income and
connection fees, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.
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Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Enterprise funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus utilizing full
accrual accounting. With this measurement focus, all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
and deferred inflows of resources of the enterprise are recorded on its statement of net position, and
under the full accrual basis of accounting, all revenues are recognized when earned and all expenses,
including depreciation, are recognized when incurred.

Unearned revenue arises when assets are received before revenue recognition criteria have been
satisfied. Grants and entitlements received before eligibility requirements are met are recorded as
deferred inflows from unavailable resources.

The District applies all applicable GASB pronouncements for certain accounting and financial
reporting guidance. In December of 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting
and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements. GASB 62 incorporates pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 into
GASB authoritative literature. In June of 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments. GASB 76 supersedes
Statement No. 55, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local
Governments. GASB 76 also amends GASB 62 and AICPA Pronouncements paragraphs 64, 74, and
82. The GAAP hierarchy sets forth what constitutes GAAP for all state and local governmental
entities. It establishes the order of priority of pronouncements and other sources of accounting and
financial reporting guidance that a governmental entity should apply.

The sources of authoritative GAAP are categorized in descending order of authority as follows:

a. Officially established accounting principles—Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statements (Category A)

b. GASB Technical Bulletins; GASB Implementation Guides; and literature of the AICPA cleared
by the GASB (Category B).

If the accounting treatment for a transaction or other event is not specified by a pronouncement in
Category A, a governmental entity should consider whether the accounting treatment is specified by a
source in Category B.

Deferred Outflows/Deferred Inflows

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position includes a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s), and as such will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditures) until then. The District has recognized a deferred outflow
of resources related to the recognition of the net pension liability reported in the Statement of Net
Position.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position reports a separate section for deferred inflows

of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and as such, will not be recognized as an
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inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has recognized a deferred inflow of resources
related to the recognition of the District’s benefit plans liability reported which is in the Statement of
Net Position.

Statement of Net Position

Net position is measured on the full accrual basis and is the excess of all the District’s assets and
deferred outflows of resources over all its liabilities. Net position is classified into the following
components:

Net Investment in Capital Assets

This component of net position consists of capital assets, including restricted capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, notes, or other
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt are also included in this component of net
position, as applicable.

Restricted Net Position

Restricted net position describes the portion of net position which is restricted as to use by the terms
and conditions of agreement with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other restrictions
which the District cannot unilaterally alter. It is the District’s policy to apply restricted resources first
when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is
available. The District has reported restricted net position of $37,409 for assets held for Baroni Park.
These funds are restricted for the park maintenance assessment districts administered by the District.
The District has reported restricted net position of $11,372,930 held for Community Parks. These funds
are development impact fees that are collected by the City of Chico and then transferred to Chico Area
Recreation and Park District and used for Community Parks only. The District has also reported
restricted net position of $451,760 for developer fees collected. These funds are collected from park
impact fees and used for new park acquisitions and improvements.

Unrestricted Net Position

This component of net position consists of the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of net investment
in capital assets or the restricted component of net position.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position is the operating statement for
proprietary funds. This statement distinguishes between operating and non-operating revenues and
expenses and presents a separate subtotal for operating revenues, operating expenses, and operating
income. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with
the District's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the District are charges
for services. Operating expenses for the District include the cost of services and supplies,
administrative expenses such as salaries and benefits, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
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Budgetary Control

The District’s fiscal year is the 12-month period beginning July 1. The general budget policy is that
the District submit to the Butte County Auditor a board-approved budget estimating revenue and
expenditures for the subsequent fiscal year prior to June 30. The final budget is legally enacted by a
board resolution on or before August 10 after necessary adjustments, if any, have been made. Withing
certain legal restrictions, adjustments to final budget amounts may be made by the Board of Directors
during the year to account for unanticipated occurrences.

Cash and investments

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits as well as highly liquid short-term investments. The
District's cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits in a financial institution serves as a
clearing account into which the District makes daily deposits and then transfers to the County pool on
at least a monthly basis.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Disclosures (Amendment of
GASB No.3), certain disclosure requirements for Deposits and Investment Risks were made in the areas
of interest rate risk and credit risk. The credit risk disclosures include the following components;
overall credit risk, custodial credit risk and concentrations of credit risk. In addition, other disclosures
are specified including use of certain methods to present deposits and investments, highly sensitive
investments, credit quality at year-end and other disclosures.

Investments are recorded at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value
Measurement and Application. Accordingly, the change in fair value of investments is recognized as
an increase or decrease to investment assets and investment income.

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction. In determining this amount, three valuation techniques are available:

e Market approach - This approach uses prices generated for identical or similar assets or
liabilities. The most common example is an investment in a public security traded in an active
exchange such as the NYSE.

e Cost approach - This technique determines the amount required to replace the current asset.
This approach may be ideal for valuing donations of capital assets or historical treasures.

e Income approach - This approach converts future amounts (such as cash flows) into a current
discounted amount.

Each of these valuation techniques requires inputs to calculate a fair value. Observable inputs have
been maximized in fair value measures, and unobservable inputs have been minimized.

The District maintains most of its cash in the County as part of a common investment pool. Deposits
in the pool are valued using the cost approach and includes accrued interest. Information regarding the
amount of dollars invested in derivatives with the County was not available. The pool is subject to
regulatory oversight by the Treasury Oversight Committee. The District is considered to be a voluntary
participant in the County investment pool.
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Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less and amounts categorized as “Cash in County Treasury” are considered cash
equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits in a financial institution and deposits
in the Butte County Treasury (the County).

Receivables and payables
Trade accounts receivable (including unbilled receivables) are carried at their net realizable values.
Capital assets

Capital assets are reported at historical cost, or in the case of donated items, at fair market value on the
date donated. The District’s capitalization policy includes all items with a unit cost of $3,000 or more.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
Useful lives are 10 to 30 years for structures, improvements, and leasehold improvements, and 3 to 5
years for equipment.

Program Advances

Activity fees paid prior to the utilization of the service are recorded as program advances and are
effectively unearned revenues.

Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the Statement of Net
Position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds
payable are reported net of applicable bond premium and discounts are reported as noncurrent assets
along with any insurance payments made during issuance of the bond. Bond issuance costs, other than
prepaid insurance, are expensed in the period incurred.

Compensated Absences

The District’s policy allows employees to accumulate vacation leave up to the employee’s annual
vacation accrual and to accumulate all unused sick leave hours. Upon retirement or separation from
the District, the employee is entitled to full compensation for unused vacation. Employees with over
five years of service credit and sick leave accruals of over 100 hours to up to 260 hours of accrued sick
time at the date of separation. The amount due within one year could not be estimated. Costs for
compensated absences are accrued when earned by employees. Accumulated unpaid employee benefits
are recognized as a liability in the General Fund at the end of the year.

Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources

related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
District’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plan (the Plan) and additions
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to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Plan
member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Investments
are reported at fair value.

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27 (GASB Statement No. 68) requires that the reported results pertain to
liability and asset information within certain defined timeframes. Liabilities are based on the results
of actuarial calculations performed as of June 30, 2021. For this report, the following timeframes are
used for the District’s pension plans:

Valuation Date June 30, 2021
Measurement Date June 30, 2022
Measurement Period June 30, 2021 to June 30, 2022

Use of Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Property Taxes

Property Taxes are levied by Butte County on the District’s behalf and are intended to support
operations and service debt. Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of
March 1%, the amount of property tax received is dependent upon the assessed real property valuations
as determined by the Butte County Assessor. Property taxes on the secured roll are due in two equal
installments on November 1*' and February 1% each year and are delinquent if not paid by December
10" and April 10™, of each year, respectively. The District received approximately 45% of its revenue
from property taxes. Property tax is recognized when it is available and measurable. The District
considers property tax as available if it is received within 60 days after fiscal year end.

Accounting and Reporting Changes

GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements

GASB 96 provides guidance on accounting for Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements (SBITA) where the government contracts for the right to use another party’s software.
The standards for SBITAs are based on the standards established in GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.

GASB 96 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022. This statement did not have a
material impact on the District’s financial statements.
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Upcoming New Accounting Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections—an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 62

This Statement defines accounting changes as changes in accounting principles, changes in accounting
estimates, and changes to or within the financial reporting entity and describes the transactions or other
events that constitute those changes. This Statement also prescribes the accounting and financial
reporting for (1) each type of accounting change and (2) error corrections in previously issued financial
statements.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for accounting changes and error corrections made in
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023, and all reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is
encouraged. Management does not believe this Statement will have a significant impact on the
District’s financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences

This Statement requires that liabilities for compensated absences be recognized for (1) leave that has
not been used and (2) leave that has been used but not yet paid in cash or settled through noncash
means. A liability should be recognized for leave that has not been used if (a) the leave is attributable
to services already rendered, (b) the leave accumulates, and (c) the leave is more likely than not to be
used for time off or otherwise paid in cash or settled through noncash means. Leave is attributable to
services already rendered when an employee has performed the services required to earn the leave.
Leave that accumulates is carried forward from the reporting period in which it is earned to a future
reporting period during which it may be used for time off or otherwise paid or settled. In estimating
the leave that is more likely than not to be used or otherwise paid or settled, a government should
consider relevant factors such as employment policies related to compensated absences and historical
information about the use or payment of compensated absences. However, leave that is more likely
than not to be settled through conversion to defined benefit postemployment benefits should not be
included in a liability for compensated absences.

This Statement requires that a liability for certain types of compensated absences—including parental
leave, military leave, and jury duty leave—not be recognized until the leave commences. This
Statement also requires that a liability for specific types of compensated absences not be recognized
until the leave is used.

This Statement also establishes guidance for measuring a liability for leave that has not been used,
generally using an employee’s pay rate as of the date of the financial statements. A liability for leave
that has been used but not yet paid or settled should be measured at the amount of the cash payment or
noncash settlement to be made. Certain salary-related payments that are directly and incrementally
associated with payments for leave also should be included in the measurement of the liabilities.

With respect to financial statements prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus,
this Statement requires that expenditures be recognized for the amount that normally would be
liquidated with expendable available financial resources. The requirements of this Statement are
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and all reporting periods thereafter.
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Management is in the process of evaluating the impact this standard will have on the District’s financial
statements.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Summary of Cash and Investments

As of June 30, 2023, the District had the following cash and investments:

Cash and Investments 2023
County Treasury $ 12,627,553
Cash in banks 8,189,509
Cash on hand 800
Total Cash and Investments $ 20,817,862

Cash Deposits

As of June 30, 2023 the carrying amount of the District’s cash in banks was $8,189,509 and the bank
balance of the District’s accounts with banks was $5,304,539, which was $5,054,539 in excess of
Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) coverage. FDIC covers up to $250,000 per bank for
each entity. Investments are made by diversified investment managers/brokers whose performance is
monitored by management and the Board of Directors. Although the fair values of investments are
subject to fluctuation on a year-to-year basis, the District believes that its investment strategies are
prudent for the long-term welfare of the organization.

The District’s cash and investments are pooled with the County of Butte. The County’s cash and
investment pool is under the oversight of the County and is not rated. For additional information
regarding the pooled cash and investments with respect to the risks identified above, please refer
to the County of Butte’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR).

Fair Value Measurements

GASB 72 established a hierarchy of inputs to the valuation techniques above. This hierarchy has
three levels:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2 inputs are quoted market prices for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices
for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, or other than
quoted prices that are not observable.

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs, such as a property valuation or an appraisal.

Investments in the County Treasury Investment Pool are not measured using the input levels above

because the District’s transactions are based on a stable net asset value per share. All contributions
and redemptions are transacted at $1.00 net asset value per share.
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Collateral and Categorization Requirements

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to
secure the District’s deposits by pledging government securities as collateral. The market value
of pledged securities must equal at least 110% of the District’s deposits. California law also allows
financial institutions to secure the District’s deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes
having a value of at least 150% of the District’s total deposits.

Investment Policy

The District’s investment policy follows the California Government Code which authorizes the
District to invest in its own bonds, certain time deposits, obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies
and instrumentalities, commercial paper, bankers’ acceptances with maturities not to exceed 270
days, and medium-term notes issued by corporations operating within the U.S., commercial paper
rated P-1 or higher by Moody’s or A-1 by Standard & Poor’s commercial paper record, repurchase
agreements of obligations of the U.S. Government or its agencies for a term of one year or less
and the Local Agency Investment Fund.

The funds pooled with the County are invested in accordance with the County's investment policy
established pursuant to state law. All monies not required for immediate expenditure are deposited
or invested to earn maximum yield consistent with safety and liquidity.

Risk Disclosures

Limitations as they relate to interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk are
described below:

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity
of its fair value to the changes in market interest rates. All of the District’s cash is held in pooled
accounts that mature in one year.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to
direct investment in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local
government’s indirect investment in securities through the use of mutual funds or government
investment pools. The State of California has no additional requirements for custodial credit risk,
nor does the District.

Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk for deposit is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits nor will it be able to recover
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collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for
investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, a
government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are
in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and the District’s investment
policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit
risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The California
Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local
governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository
regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit).

Concentration of Credit Risk

The District's cash and investment funds are pooled with the County of Butte. The investment
policy regarding the amount that can be invested in any one issuer is stipulated by the California
Government Code. The District is required to disclose investments that represent a concentration
of five percent or more of investments in any one issuer, held by the District in securities of issuers
other than U. S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools. At June 30,
2023, there were no investments representing five percent or more from any one issuer.

NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS

The District’s capital assets consisted of the following as of June 30, 2023:

Balance Adjustments & Balance

Governmental activities July 01,2022 Additions Retirements June 30, 2023
Nondepreciable Capital Assets:

Land $ 11,634,791 § - $ - $ 11,634,791

Construction in progress 349,579 2,106,342 (1,673,264) 782,657
Total nondepreciable capital assets 11,984,370 2,106,342 (1,673,264) 12,417,448
Depreciable capital assets:

Leasehold Improvements 1,098,163 49,457 863,564 2,011,184

Structures and improvements 28,357,507 - 809,701 29,167,208

Parks and Recreation Equipment 1,070,014 172,343 (105,629) 1,136,728

Office Equipment 296,192 - - 296,192

Vehicles 474,688 135,582 (37,180) 573,090
Total depreciable capital assets 31,296,564 357,382 1,530,456 33,184,402
Less accumulated depreciation:

Leasehold Improvements 848,716 25,882 - 874,598

Structures and improvements 14,025,832 751,005 - 14,776,837

Parks and Recreation Equipment 1,005,299 39,327 (105,629) 938,997

Office Equipment 283,063 6,564 - 289,627

Vehicles 403,956 21,400 (32,780) 392,576
Total accumulated depreciation 16,566,866 844,178 (138,409) 17,272,635
Total depreciable capital assets - net 14,729,698 (486,796) 1,668,865 15,911,767
Capital assets - net $ 26,714,068 § 1,619,546 $ (4399) $§ 28329215

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2023 was $844,178.

Page 26



Chico Area Recreation and Park District

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The District's long-term liabilities consisted of the following as of June 30, 2023

Balance Balance Due Within

Description June 30, 2022 Additions Reductions June 30, 2023  One Year

Compensated Absences $ 230,883 % - $ 5,195 § 225,688 $ 169,266
Net Pension Liability 657,142 3,438,310 978,555 3,116,897 -

Total Long-term liabilities $ 888,025 $3,438,310 § 983,750 $ 3,342,585 $ 169,266

NOTE 5 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risk of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. In an effort to manage its
risk exposure, The District is a member of the Special District Risk Management Authority
("SDRMA"). A summary of the coverage limits are as follows:

General liability - bodily injury $ 10,000,000
General liability - property damage 10,000,000
Public officials' errors and omissions 10,000,000
Personal Lability coverage for members of the Board of Directors 500,000
Employment practices liability 10,000,000
Employee benefits liability 10,000,000
Employee dishonesty coverage 1,000,000
Auto liability - bodily injury 10,000,000
Auto lability - property damage 10,000,000
Uninsured motorist - bodily injury 1,000,000
Non-owned auto - property damage 10,000,000
Non-owned auto - bodily injury 10,000,000
Auto physical damage - compensation 100,000
Auto physical damage - collision 100,000
Auto physical damage - high dollar vehicles 1,000,000,000
Property - catastrophic loss 1,000,000,000
Property - boiler and machinery 100,000,000
Property - flood 10,000,000
Property - pollution coverage 2,000,000
Property - cybersecurity coverage 2,000,000
Mobile and contractors equipment 1,000,000,000
Workers' compensation 5,000,000

SDRMA is a risk-pooling self-insurance authority created for the purpose of arranging and
administering programs of insurance for the pooling of self-insured losses and to purchase excess
insurance coverage. As a member of the SDRMA, the District participated in the general liability, auto
liability, property, boiler and machinery coverage, and public officials’ errors and omissions insurance
programs.

The District has a $500 deductible under general liability, a $500 deductible for personal liability
coverage for members of the Board of Directors, and a $1,000 deductible under auto liability. There
were no accrued losses for insurance claims as of June 30, 2023. There were no settlements that
exceeded insurance coverage for fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.
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Condensed financial information for SDRMA for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 is as follows:

June 30, 2023

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows $ 148,239,191
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 76,717,988
Total Equity 71,521,203
Total Revenues 100,738,904
Total Expenditures 96,560,830

NOTE 6 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
General Information about the Pension Plans

Plan Description - All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in
the District’s Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plan (the Plan), a cost-sharing multiple employer
defined benefit pension plan administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the Plan is established by State statute and District resolution.
CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plan regarding
benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS
website.

Benefits Provided - CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.
Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full-time employment. Members
with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 55 with statutorily reduced benefits. All
members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one
of the following: The Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W
Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for the Plan are applied as specified by the Public
Employees’ Retirement Law.

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2023, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous
Tier 1 PEPRA

Benefit formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 Years 5 Years
Benefit payments Monthly for Life Monthly for Life
Retirement age 55 62
Monthly benefits as a

% of eligible compensation 2.00% 2.00%
Required employee contribution rates 8.00% 7.75%
Required employer contribution rates 10.87% 7.47%
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Employees Covered - At June 30, 2023, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms
for the Plan at the valuation date of June 30, 2022:

Miscellaneous

Active 62
Transferred 47
Separated 98
Retired 51
Total 258

Contributions - Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that
the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the
actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding
contributions for the Plan are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS.
The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits
earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued
liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate
and the contribution rate of employees. The District's contributions were $880,928 during the fiscal
year.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

As of June 30, 2023, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the net
pension liability totaling $3,116,897.

The District’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension
liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of June 30, 2021 rolled forward to June 30, 2022 using standard update procedures. The District’s
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers,
actuarially determined.

The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2022 and 2023
was as follows:

Miscellaneous
Proportion - June 30, 2022 0.03461%
Proportion - June 30, 2023 0.06661%
Change - Increase/(Decrease) 0.03200%

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized pension expense of $627,989.
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At June 30, 2023, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Changes of Assumptions $ 319,391 $ -
Differences between Expected and Actual Experience 62,593 41,922
Differences between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings 570,932 -
Differences between Employer's Contributions and
Proportionate Share of Contributions 79,555 40,084
Change in Employer's Proportion 532,823 -
Pension Contributions Made Subsequent to Measurement Date 880,928 -
Total $ 2,446,222 $ 82,006

The District reported $880,928, as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent
to the measurement date that will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability during the
year ended June 30, 2024.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Deferred

Outflows/
Fiscal Year (Inflows) of
Ending June 30: Resources
2024 $ 477,198
2025 422,368
2026 234,520
2027 349,202
2028 -
Thereafter -
Total $ 1,483,288
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Chico Area Recreation and Park District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuations were
determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

Valuation Date June 30, 2021
Measurement Date June 30, 2022
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age
Normal Cost
Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 6.90%
Inflation 2.30%
Payroll Growth 2.80%
Projected Salary Increase (1)
Investment Rate of Return 6.8% (2)
Mortality 3)

(1) Varies by entry age and service
(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation
(3) Derived using CalPERS' membership data for all funds

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.9 percent for each
Plan. To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount
rate for each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that
would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested
plans run out of assets. Therefore, the current 6.9 percent discount rate is adequate, and the use of the
municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount rate of 6.9 percent
will be applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The cash flows used in
the testing were developed assuming that both members and employers will make their required
contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. The stress test results are presented in a
detailed report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website
under the GASB 68 section.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical
returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term
(first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected
nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for
each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that
arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term
and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate
calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.
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Chico Area Recreation and Park District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return
was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset

allocation.

Assumed Long-Term

Asset Expected Real
Asset Class (a) Allocation Return (1)(2)
Global Equity Cap Weighted 30.00% 4.54%
Global Equity NonCap Weighted 12.00% 3.84%
Private Equity 13.00% 7.28%
Treasury 5.00% 0.27%
Mortgage-backed Securities 5.00% 0.50%
Investment Grade Corporates 10.00% 1.56%
High Yield 5.00% 2.27%
Emerging Market Debt 5.00% 2.48%
Private Debt 5.00% 3.57%
Real Assets 15.00% 3.21%
Leverage -5.00% -0.59%
Total 100.00%

(1) An expected inflation of 2.3% used for this period.
(2) Figures are based on the 2021-22 Asset Liability Study.

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount

Rate - The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the
Plan, calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the District’s proportionate share
of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage
point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net

Miscellaneous
1% Decrease 5.90%
Net Pension Liability $ 5,468,090
Current 6.90%
Net Pension Liability $ 3,116,896
1% Increase 7.90%
Net Pension Liability $ 1,182,446

position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.
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Chico Area Recreation and Park District

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

NOTE 7 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated all subsequent events from the statement of financial position date of June
30, 2023, through the date the financial statements were available to be issued, January 24, 2024. No
subsequent events occurred that would require recognition in the financial statements or disclosure in
the notes to the financial statements.

Page 33



Page Intentionally Left Blank



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Page 34



Chico Area Parks and Recreation District
Schedule of Contributions for Pension Plans

June 30, 2023
Miscellaneous Plan
Plan Measurement Date 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Fiscal Year Ended 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Contractually Required Contributions $ 220,825 $§ 224228 $§ 229225 $ 346,326 $§ 383,106 $ 400876 $ 579,955 $ 527407 $ 780,928
Contributions in Relation to

Contractually Required Contributions 220,825 224,228 229,225 346,326 1,111,353 400,876 767,955 722,882 880,928
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ (728,247) $ - $ (188,000) $ (195,475) $ (100,000)
Covered Payroll $2,154,908 $2,354,799 $2,255,959 $2,347,917 $2,491,890 $2,602,267 $2,481,040 $2,691,406 $3,026,959
Contributions as a % of Covered Payrol 10.25% 9.52% 10.16% 14.75% 44.60% 15.40% 30.95% 26.86% 29.10%

Notes to Schedule:
Valuation Date: June 30,2021
Assumptions Used:  Entry Age Method used for Actuarial Cost Method
Level Percentage of Payroll and Direct Rate Smoothing
Remaining Amortization Period no more than 29 years
Inflation Assumed at 2.30%
Investment Rate of Returns set at 6.8%
The mortality table was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The rates incorporate Generational Mortality to capture ongoing morality improvement using

80% of Scale MP 2020 published by the Society of Actuaries. For more details, please refer to the 2021 experience study report that can be found on the
CalPERS website.

Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only nine years are shown.
The CalPERS discount rate was increased from 7.50% to 7.65% in FY2016, to 7.15% in FY2018, and then decreased to 6.80% in FY2023.
The CalPERS mortality assumptions was adjusted in fiscal year 2023.
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Chico Area Parks and Recreation District
Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability

June 30, 2023

Miscellaneous and Safety Plan
Plan Measurement Date 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Fiscal Year Ended 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Proportion of Net Pension

Liability (Safety and Misc) 0.02733% 0.02562% 0.02749% 0.02862% 0.02131% 0.02280% 0.02457% 0.01215% 0.02698%
Proportion of Net Pension

Liability (Misc Plan Only) 0.06881% 0.06409% 0.06847% 0.07201% 0.05448% 0.05834% 0.06337% 0.03461% 0.06661%
Proportionate Share of

Net Pension Liability $ 1,700,721 1,758,201 $2,378,682 $2,838,733 $2,053,235 $ 2,336,424 $ 2,673,146 $ 657,141 3,116,896
Covered Payroll $ 2,297,052 2,154,908 $2,354,799 $2,255,959 $2,347917 $ 2,491,890 $ 2,602,267 $ 2,481,040 2,691,406
Proportionate Share of NPL

as a % of Covered Payroll 74.04% 81.59% 101.01% 125.83% 87.45% 93.76% 102.72% 26.49% 115.81%
Plan's Fiduciary Net Position

as a % of the TPL 81.15% 83.49% 78.20% 77.07% 79.03% 83.69% 82.32% 95.84% 81.93%

Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only nine years are shown.
The CalPERS discount rate was increased from 7.50% to 7.65% in FY2016, to 7.15% in FY2018, and then decreased to 6.80% in FY2023.
The CalPERS mortality assumptions was adjusted in fiscal year 2023.
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Chico Area Recreation and Park District
Combining Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2023
Community
Park Park Impact
General Baroni Park Oak Way Park  Peterson Park Development Fees 2023
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments 13,629,182 37,409 - - 413,760 6,737,511 $ 20,817,862
Accounts receivable 675,590 - - - 38,000 - 713,590
Interest receivable - - - - - - -
Due from other funds - - - - - 4,635,419 4,635,419
Prepaid expenses 12,521 - - - - - 12,521
Total current assets 14,317,293 37,409 - - 451,760 11,372,930 26,179,392
Capital assets - net 28,329,215 - - - - - 28,329,215
Total assets $ 42,646,508 $ 37,409 $ - $ - $ 451,760 $ 11,372,930 $ 54,508,607
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension adjustments $ 2446222 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 2,446,222
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 8,970 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 8,970
Accrued payroll and liabilities 328,117 - - - - - 328,117
Program advances 1,011,423 - - - - - 1,011,423
Due to other funds 4,635,419 - - - - - 4,635,419
Deposits payable - - - - - - -
Current portion of water revenue bonds - - - - - - -
Total current liabilities 5,983,929 - - - - - 5,983,929
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 225,688 - - - - - 225,688
Net pension liability 3,116,897 - - - - - 3,116,897
Total noncurrent liabilities 3,342,585 - - - - - 3,342,585
Total liabilities $ 9326514 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 9,326,514
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension adjustments $ 82,007 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 82,007
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets $ 28329215 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 28,329,215
Restricted - 37,409 - - 451,760 11,372,930 11,862,099
Unrestricted 7,354,994 - - - - - 7,354,994
Total net position $ 35,684,209 $ 37,409 $ - $ - $ 451,760 $ 11,372,930 $ 47,546,308
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Chico Area Recreation and Park District
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Operating revenues:
Program service fees
Developer fees
Intergovernmental City Parks
Rentals
Other revenue
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits
Services and supplies
Contributions to other agencies
Capital Outlay
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Interest income

Assessment fees

Property taxes

RDA pass through taxes

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income before capital contributions
Capital contributions

Income (loss) before operating transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in net position
Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

Community
Park Park Impact
General Baroni Park Oak Way Park  Peterson Park ~ Development Fees 2023
$ 3,998,680 $ - $ - - $ - $ - $ 3,998,689
- - - - 33,979 5,996,881 6,030,860
635,552 - - - - - 635,552
464,994 - - - - - 464,994
811,018 - - - - - 811,018
5,910,253 - - - 33,979 5,996,881 11,941,113
7,268,332 125,914 125,914 99,140 - - 7,619,300
2,865,159 19,810 24,927 27,082 - - 2,936,978
9,997 - - - - - 9,997
844,179 - - - - - 844,179
10,987,667 145,724 150,841 126,222 - - 11,410,454
(5,077,414) (145,724) (150,841) (126,222) 33,979 5,996,881 530,659
(127,262) 266 231 427 (10,712) (177,021) (314,071)
- 98,472 22,945 42,168 - - 163,585
4,827,855 - - - - - 4,827,855
1,734,349 - - - - - 1,734,349
6,434,942 98,738 23,176 42,595 (10,712) (177,021) 6,411,718
1,357,528 (46,986) (127,665) (83,627) 23,267 5,819,860 6,942,377
1,357,528 (46,986) (127,665) (83,627) 23,267 5,819,860 6,942,377
- 967 127,665 83,627 - - 212,259
(212,259) - - - - - (212,259)
1,145,269 (46,019) - - 23,267 5,819,860 6,942,377
34,538,940 83,428 - - 428,493 5,553,070 40,603,931
$ 35,684,209 $ 37,409 $ - - $ 451,760 $ 11,372,930 § 47,546,308
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Chavan and Associates, llp

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
of the Chico Area Recreation and Park District
Chico, California

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
business-type activities of the Chico Area Recreation and Park District (the “District") as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated January 24, 2024.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

15105 Concord Circle, Ste. 130, Morgan Hill, CA 95037
Tel: 408-217-8749 « E-Fax: 408-872-4159
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Chavan and Associates, llp

Certified Public Accountants

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

C & A UP

January 24, 2024
Morgan Hill, California
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CA RD Regular Agenda Item 4.1.2
(530) 8954711 545 Vallombrosa Ave
chicorec.com Chico Area Recreation & Park District ChiCO, CA 95926

FACILTIY COMMITTEE MEETING
Michael McGinnis and Dave Donnan
Wednesday, February 14 — 3:00 P.M.

Board Members Present: Michael McGinnis, Board Member
Dave Donnan, Board Member
Board Members Absent:
Staff Members Present: Annabel Grimm, General Manager
Holli Drobny, Business Services Manager
Anjie Goulding, Recreation Director
Scott Schumann, Parks and Facilities Director
Legal Counsel Present: None

Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 3:00 PM, and a roll call was taken, as noted above.

1. Public Comments
None

2. Softball Donation (Staff Report FA-24-001)
The Committee recommends to the Board of Directors the acceptance of CSLL's
donations and improvements to the DeGarmo snack shop.

3. ARC Collaboration (Staff Report FA-24-002)

The Committee recommends the Board of Directors approve The Arc collaboration,
accept the playground components, and install the equipment at Rotary Centennial
Park.

4. Rotary Donation (Staff Report FA-24-003)

The Committee recommends the Board of Directors acceptance of the Noon Rotary
Club donation and the installation of The Arc’s playground equipment at Rotary
Centennial Park.

5. Capital Improvement Projects (Staff Report FA-24-004)
District staff provided updates on current capital improvement projects.

6. Directors’ Comments
None

7. Adjournment
Adjourned at 3:35 to the next scheduled Facilities Committee Meeting.
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Chico Area Recreation & Park District

Capital Improvement Plan

Budget Year Catego| Fund Source Location Description Est Compl Projected Cost
2022 Existing GF ADA Compliance Upgrades  As per ADA Transition Plan 5/1/2024 135,000
GF CARD Community Center Commercial Oven Completed 27,300

GF Community Park Court Lighting Completed 29,900

GF Community Park Field House HVAC Completed 66,000

GF DFJ HVAC Upgrade Completed 550,000

GF PV Center/Pool Replace Pool Room Roof Completed 48,000

GF Rotary Park Resurface Basketball Court Completed 77,000

GF Fixed Assets Gator Replacement Completed 14,927

GF Fixed Assets New 11ft Deck Mower Completed 99,600

GF Fixed Assets Tractor Replacement Completed 102,000

GF Fixed Assets 17' Deck Mower Completed 85,000

GF Fixed Assets Purchase F-250 Completed 61,200

GF Hooker Oak Park Resurface Basketball Court Completed 77,000

GF Hooker Oak Park Softball Field Sports Lighting Completed 890,000

Grant/NIF/GF Hooker Oak Park Replace 5-12 Play Structure Completed 192,000

Grant/NIF/GF Peterson Park Replace 5-12 Play Structure Completed 198,000

Existing Total 2,652,927

New GF Community Park Pickleball Conversion Completed 84,000

New Total 84,000

2022 Total 2,736,927
2023 Existing GF ADA Compliance Upgrades  As per ADA Transition Plan 6/30/2024 135,000
GF CARD Community Center Roof & Exterior Repair/Painting 7/1/2024 200,000

GF Community Park Field house wall padding 6/1/2024 27,600

GF DeGarmo Park Replace Soccer Goals Completed 25,000

GF District-wide Irrigation Smart Controller Upgrades 6/1/2024 115,000

GF Lakeside Lakeside Blinds Completed 17,250

GF Lakeside Lakeside Carpet Replacement Completed 50,000

GF Lakeside Permanant Projectors 5/1/2024 23,000

GF Fixed Assets DeGarmo Painter Replacement Completed 8,050

GF Fixed Assets Gator Replacement Completed 13,500

GF Fixed Assets Wood Chipper Replacement Completed 85,000

GF Fixed Assets Purchase Standing Mower Completed 15,000

GF Fixed Assets Floor Scrubber Replacement Completed 6,900

GF Fixed Assets Vehicle Replacement (Utility Truck) Completed 75,000

GF Fixed Assets Vehicle Purchase (Truck) Completed 120,000

GF Fixed Assets Gator Purchase (Wildwood) Completed 13,500

GF/DIF Community Park Expand Maintenance Hub 8/28/2024 1,300,000

Grant/NIF/GF Rotary Park Replace 5-12 Play Structure 6/30/2024 155,250

Existing Total 2,385,050

New DIF Community Park Bocce Courts Completed 890,000
DIF/Grants Aquatic and Rec Center Aquatic Center Design Phase Fall 2024 1,900,000

Grant/NIF Chapman Park Park Renovation 3/1/2024 3,400,000

New Total 6,190,000

2023 Total 8,575,050
Grand Total 11,311,977

2.14.2024



Staff Report 24-009
Regular Agenda Item 4.2

CARD BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chico Area Recreation & Park District

STAFF REPORT

DATE: February 22, 2024
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Annabel Grimm

SUBJECT: Updated Policies

BACKGROUND

The District is reviewing Human Resource (HR) and Personnel policies to better align with
current best practices and legislation, using the CSDA Sample Policy Guide as a framework. The
Board can anticipate a large number of HR and Personnel policies from now until the end of the
current Fiscal Year. The following policies are recommended for approval today.

Employment Practices

3108 - Drug and Alcohol Testing
3116 - Employee Classifications
3122 — Hours of Work and Overtime

1|Page
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ﬁ CARD Policy and Procedure

POLICY #3108 Drug & Alcohol Testing

EFFECTIVE DATE 02/22/2024 VERSION # 2

DATE OF LAST

REVISION 01/25/2024 NEXT REVIEW DATE 1/1/2026

APPLIES TO

Division Districtwide

Sub-Division Human Resources

VERSION REVISION DATE DESCRIPTION OF AUTHOR

CHANGE/SUPERSEDE

07/01/2010 Board Approved Employee Handbook General Manager
01/25/2024 Removing from Handbook and adding to Michelle Niven

new policy repository

PROCEDURE

Use of these substances, whether on or off the job can detract from an employee’s work performance,
efficiency, safety, and health, and therefore impair the employee and his/her ability to competently
perform his/her job. In addition, the use or possession of these substances on the job constitutes a
potential danger to the welfare and safety of the employee in possession and other employees, and it also
exposes the District to the risks of property loss or damage, or injury to other persons.

Furthermore, the use of prescription drugs and/or over-the-counter drugs also may affect an employee's
job performance and may impair the employee'’s ability to competently perform his/her job. The District
is not required to accommodate the medical use of marijuana at places of employment or during working

hours.

The following rules and standards of conduct apply to all employees either on District property or during
the workday (including meals and rest periods). Behavior that violates District policy includes:

Possession or use of alcohol or an illegal or controlled substance, or being under the influence of
alcohol, or an illegal or controlled substance while on the job.

Driving while under the influence of alcohol or an illegal or controlled substance.

Distribution, sale, or purchase of alcohol or an illegal or controlled substance while on the job.

Violation of these rules and standards of conduct will not be tolerated. The District also may
bring the matter to the attention of appropriate law enforcement authorities.

Employees are prohibited from reporting for duty or remaining on duty with any alcohol in their
systems. Employees are also prohibited from consuming alcohol during working hours, including
meal and break periods. This does not include the authorized use of alcohol at District-sponsored
functions or activities.



Policy #3108 — Drug and Alcohol Testing

e To enforce this policy, the District reserves the right to conduct searches of District property or
employees to implement other measures necessary to deter and detect abuse of this policy. Entry
onto District property is deemed consent to an inspection of person, and District vehicle.

e An employee’s conviction on a charge of illegal sale or possession of any controlled substance
while off District property will not be tolerated because such conduct, even though off duty,
reflects adversely on the District.

e Any employee who is using prescription or over-the-counter drugs that may impair the
employee’s ability to safely perform the job or affect the safety or well-being of others, must
notify a manager of such use immediately before starting or resuming work.

REASONABLE SUSPICION TESTING

In cases where an employee’s supervisor or other member of management has reasonable suspicion to
believe that the employee possesses or is under the influence of drugs and/or alcohol they should bring it
to the attention of the General Manager or a person designated by the General Manager. At the General
Manager's discretion drug and/or alcohol screening may be ordered. The suspicion will be based on
objective symptoms such as factors related to the employee’s appearance, behavior, and/or speech.
Refusal to submit to screening as ordered may result in immediate termination. Unreasonable delay in
providing a urine or breath specimen could be considered a refusal.

TESTING POSITIVE FOR DRUGS OR ALCOHOL

Whenever an employee tests positive for the presence of illegal/unauthorized drugs or alcohol, or the
misuse of legal drugs, such employee shall immediately be removed from the workplace, with
employment suspended without pay. The employee will be given the opportunity to contest or explain
the positive results before the employer takes any action on employment status that could result in
disciplinary action up to and including termination.

RETESTING

If an employee wishes to challenge the test result, the employee can request a retest of the original
sample. Request for a retest must be made within twenty-four (24) hours after the employee is initially
advised of the test result. We encourage and will reasonably accommodate employees with alcohol or
drug dependencies to seek treatment and/or rehabilitation. Employees desiring such assistance should
request a treatment or rehabilitation leave. The District is not obligated, however, to continue to employ
any person whose performance of essential job duties is impaired because of drug or alcohol use, nor is
the District obligated to re-employ any person who has participated in treatment and/or rehabilitation if
that person’s job performance remains impaired as a result of dependency. Additionally, employees who
are given the opportunity to seek treatment and/or rehabilitation, but fail to successfully overcome their
dependency or problem, will not automatically be given a second opportunity to seek treatment and/or
rehabilitation. This policy on treatment and rehabilitation is not intended to affect the District’s treatment
of employees who violate the regulations described previously or to alter the at-will status of
employment. Rather, rehabilitation is an option for an employee who acknowledges a chemical
dependency and voluntarily seeks treatment to end that dependency.
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Policy #3108 — Drug and Alcohol Testing

Authority: General Manager; Board of Directors

Michelle Niven
Author (print and sign) Date

Annabel Grimm Date
General Manager

Approved by the Board of Directors on:
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POLICY #3116

ﬁ CARD Policy and Procedure

Employee Classifications

EFFECTIVE DATE 02/22/2024 VERSION # 2

DATE OF LAST

REVISION 01/25/2024 NEXT REVIEW DATE 1/1/2026

APPLIES TO

Division Districtwide

Sub-Division Human Resources

VERSION REVISION DATE DESCRIPTION OF AUTHOR

CHANGE/SUPERSEDE

1 07/01/2010 Board Approved Employee Handbook General Manager
2 01/25/2024 Removing from Handbook and adding to Michelle Niven

new policy repository

TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

TERM
Introductory

Employee

Regular Full-
Time Employee

Seasonal
Employee

Part-Time
Employee

Temporary
Employee

DEFINITION

A full-time or part-time employee who is hired for an ongoing (rather than
temporary) assignment and who is in the first six (6) months of their employment,
or during an introductory period that has been extended beyond six (6) months.

An employee who has completed the introductory period and regularly works at
least 40 hours per workweek on a continuing basis. Regular full-time employees
are eligible for District sponsored benefits and paid leave in certain circumstances
as set forth in the Employee Handbook.

An employee who has completed the introductory period and regularly works a
maximum of 28 hours per week (not to exceed a maximum of 999 hours per fiscal
year, including any paid leave hours.

An employee that works year-round but cannot exceed 1560 hours in a calendar
year. A temporary increase in regularly scheduled hours anticipated to be of short
duration will not affect eligibility for benefits and leave. "Extended part-time”
employees are eligible for enrollment into the CalPERS retirement plan.

An employee who works full-time or part-time for a pre-defined period as
established in the job offer. The employee may work on an intermittent schedule
dependent upon the staffing needs of the unit. Normally, a temporary
assignment will not last beyond six months, but may be extended as needed.
Extension of a temporary assignment does not affect a temporary employee’s
status or classification. Temporary employees are not eligible for District
sponsored benefits or paid leave but are eligible for state-mandated paid sick
leave.



Policy #3116 — Employee Classifications

PROCEDURE

Exempt employees are those who fall within one of the exemptions from overtime pay specified by law
and are paid on a salary basis. Exempt employees are not entitled to premium pay for overtime hours
worked. Exempt employees are not required to track or record hours worked. Exempt employees are
paid full salary for any week in which they perform work, without regard to hours or number of days
worked. Exempt employees are expected to work a minimum of 40 hours per week. Exempt employees
are required to notify the District in writing of time off taken for any purpose, with prior approval,
including but not limited to, vacation, scheduled medical and dental appointments sick leave,
administrative leave, bereavement leave, medical leave or leave taken for any other purpose. Exempt
employees customarily and regularly exercise discretion and independent judgment and are expected to
work the requisite hours, without regard to overtime, in order to fulfill all the expectations and functions
of their positions.

Non-Exempt employees are those who do not fall within one of the exemptions from overtime pay
specified by law. Non-exempt employees are entitled to be paid for each hour worked including premium
pay for all overtime hours worked in accordance with federal and state law.

An employee may change job status or category only upon written notification by the General Manager.
There is no automatic conversion from one job status or category to another.

Authority: General Manager; Board of Directors

Michelle Niven
Author (print and sign) Date

Annabel Grimm Date
General Manager

Approved by the Board of Directors on:

2|Page
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POLICY #3122 Overtime

EFFECTIVE DATE 02/22/2024 VERSION # 2

DATE OF LAST

REVISION 01/25/2024 NEXT REVIEW DATE 1/1/2026

APPLIES TO

Division Districtwide

Sub-Division Human Resources

VERSION REVISION DATE DESCRIPTION OF AUTHOR

CHANGE/SUPERSEDE

1 07/01/2010 Board Approved Employee Handbook General Manager
2 01/25/2024 Removing from Handbook and adding to Michelle Niven

new policy repository

TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

TERM DEFINITION

An individual who is exempt from the overtime provision of the Fair
Non-Exempt Employee Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and is therefore entitled to overtime pay for
all hours worked beyond 40 in a workweek.

Exempt employees are paid a fixed salary that is intended to cover all of
the compensation to which they are entitled. Because they are exempt,
such employees are not entitled to additional compensation for extra
hours of work or overtime pay.

Exempt Employee

PROCEDURE

As necessary, non-exempt employees may be required to work overtime. For purposes of determining
which hours constitute overtime, only actual hours worked in the defined workweek will be counted. The
District provides compensation for all overtime hours worked by non-exempt employees in accordance
with the Fair Labor Standards Act as follows: All hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours in one
workweek will be treated as overtime and shall be paid at a rate of one and one-half times the employee’s
regular rate of pay. A workday begins at 12:00 a.m. and ends twenty-four (24) hours later.

The District's normal workweek is defined as any seven-day period established by the District in which
employees shall not, normally, exceed 40 work hours. The District’s current workweek is Saturday through
Friday. Each employee’s supervisor will advise the employee regarding his or her specific working hours in
accordance with the needs of the department and position. Any variation to the standard workweek must
be approved by the General Manager and memorialized in writing.

1|Page



Policy #3122 — Overtime

Hours worked means time actually spent on the job. It does not include hours away from work due to
vacation, sickness, holidays or leaves of absence even when those days are compensated. Weekend work
does not automatically qualify for compensation at an overtime rate of pay. Hours worked on Saturdays
and Sundays qualify for overtime pay only if they qualify as overtime hours under the standards noted
above.

Employees must accurately report all actual time worked, including overtime, on timecards or in the
District’s electronic timekeeping system. Overtime must be approved in writing in advance by the
employee’s immediate supervisor.

When an employee has worked overtime, the District will automatically pay the employee overtime.
However, In lieu of overtime pay, non-exempt, regular full-time employees may opt for compensatory
time off (CTO) in lieu of compensation for hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours a week in accordance
with the Fair Labor Standards Act. This request must be made in writing using the appropriate CTO
request form and submitted to the Finance Department. CTO will be earned at time and one-half for all
hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week. CTO may be limited, preserved, used or cashed out
consistent with the provisions of this policy and applicable laws and regulations. No employee may
accrue more than 240 hours of CTO (the 240-hour limit represents not more than 160 hours of actual
overtime worked). Any employee who accrues the maximum 240 hours of CTO shall thereafter be paid
overtime at a rate of one and one-half hours for each hour worked in excess of 40 hours in each
subsequent workweek until such time as the employee has used or been cashed out of some of his or her
accrued CTO and is eligible to accrue additional CTO.

All CTO must be scheduled at a time which does not unduly disrupt the operations of the District and
approved by a Division Manager or Supervisor. Employees who request to use accrued CTO will be
permitted to use the CTO within a reasonable period after making the request if the use of CTO does not
unduly disrupt the operations of the District as determined by the Division Manager or Supervisor.

If an employee has any accrued and unused CTO at the time they separate from District employment, the
employee will be paid for such unused CTO at the higher of their regular rate of compensation at
separation or the average regular rate received by the employee during the last three years of their
employment immediately prior to separation, in accordance with applicable state or federal wage and
hour laws.

Authority: General Manager; Board of Directors

Michelle Niven

Author (print and sign) Date

Annabel Grimm Date
General Manager

Approved by the Board of Directors on:
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Staff Report FI-24-008
Finance Agenda Item F

CARD Regular Agenda Item 4.3
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chico Area Recreation & Park District

Finance Committee

STAFF REPORT

DATE: February 22, 2024
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Annabel Grimm

SUBJECT: Aquatic Design Scope

BACKGROUND

At the March 2023 meeting, the Board awarded the Aquatic Facility design to Confluence, Inc.
with a contract amount of $1.727M. Through the programming and conceptual design
development, elements and amenities were added in response to community input and to
achieve financial break-even operations.

The project budget was set at $20M. With the project being master planned, the estimated
project cost has increased to nearly $30M. The scope increase requires additional engineering,
architecture, and, ultimately, more construction drawings.

ANALYSIS
Design fees typically range from 9 — 10% of the entire project. Comparing the fee against the
project budget, the percentage drops to below 7%.

Original Revised

Design Fee \ 1,727,000 2,074,624
Project Budget | 20,000,000 30,000,000
% of Budget | 8.6% 6.9%

RECCOMENDATION
The Committee recommend to the Board of Directors an increase in the design fee budget.

1|Page
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CONFLUENCE

February 14, 2024

Scott Schumann, Director of Parks and Facilities
Chico Area Recreation & Park District

545 Vallombrosa Avenue

Chico, CA 95926

sschumann@chicorec.com

RE: Aquatic Facility Design Services, Chico, CA, Project #23030
Supplemental Professional Services Agreement #03

Dear Scott:

We are pleased to submit this supplemental professional Services agreement for additional design
services services related to the expanded scope of the project as delineated in the Schematic Design
package presented to the CARD Board of Directors for the new aquatic facility as provided herein
and in accordance with the agreement dated May 10, 2023. Please return one copy of the executed
supplemental Services agreement to Confluence.

Section 1: Supplemental Scope of Services

1.1 The following project adjustments, when compared to the 2016 preferred conceptual design
provided by the Client, warrant additional scope of work for architecture, engineering and
project management/coordination:

1.1.1  Aquatics Scope Expansion:
1.1.1.1 50-meter pool (12,620 SF) with a bulkhead and includes competitive swim
courses (25y, 25m, and 50m) in two directions and 4 water polo fields of play
(5,000 SF expansion).
1.1.1.2 The 50-meter pool includes a diving well which is structurally more complex than
a shallow water pool
1.1.1.3 Addition of diving structures and infrastructure to support Flytime slide.
1.1.1.4 Expanded leisure pool in size, cost, complexity (3,500 SF expansion).
1.1.1.5 Leisure pool incorporates a larger, more complex water slide complex than initial
concept, requiring additional engineering for more pumps, piping, etc.
1.1.1.6 Lazy river approximately 3-times the size and contains more interactive water
features than envisioned in the original concept, requiring additional engineering
for more pumps, piping, etc.
1.1.2  Architectural Scope Expansion:
1.1.2.1 Additional architectural and engineering design services proposed include
approximately 3,000SF of additional square footage of program area including:
e Enclosed climbing room with climbing wall
e Two (2) large indoor party rooms

thinkconfluence.com
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e Additional restroom/locker room and other support space as required by
code to support expanded pool sizes.
1.2 Compensation for the Supplemental Scope of Services described in section 1 shall be an
additional lump sum of $297,000.00 billed monthly, based on percent completion of the above

services.

1.3 New Contract Value
Original Contract Value:

Supplemental Agreement #1 (Gallaway):

Supplemental Agreement #2 (CRC):
Fee Adjustment (SA #3):

$1,727,000.00
$39,824.00
$10,800.00
$297,000.00

Adjusted Contract Value:

$2,074,624.00

Accepted By:

Chico Area Recreation District

Offered by:

Confluence, Inc
CMM-M
Signature & Iﬁte

Terry Berkbuegler, Sr. Vice President

Signature & Date

Printed Name & Title

Confluence
307 N Michigan Ave, Suite 601
Chicago, IL 60601

Printed Name & Title

CARD AQUATIC FACILITY - SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES AGREEMENT / 23030

Page 2 of 2

thinkconfluence.com



Staff Report 24-011
Regular Agenda Item 4.2

CARD BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chico Area Recreation & Park District

STAFF REPORT

DATE: February 22, 2024
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Annabel Grimm

SUBJECT: Notice of Exemption — Aquatic Center Project CEQA

BACKGROUND

Staff have completed the CEQA process for the future site of the Aquatic Center. The process
has resulted in a Notice of Exemption (NOE) to be filed with the Butte County Clerk and State
Clearinghouse with 5 days of the Board Authorization to Proceed.

This step is necessary for CARD as the Lead Public Agency on the project as part of the
California Environmental Quality Act. In addition, it is a necessary step for eligibility to receive
the Land Water Conservation Fund grant of $6M through the California Office of Grants and
Local Services.

The NOE document and summary of the CEQA process are included for review.

RECOMMENDATION
Authorization to proceed with filing the Notice of Exemption for the Aquatic Center Project.
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CARD

Chico Area Recreation and Park District
CEQA Process
Chico Aquatic Center Summary
1/25/2024

Project Summary

The CARD Aquatic and Recreation Park will be located at the intersection of Esplanade and Garner Lane
just southeast of the Butte Humane Society and the Down Range Indoor Training Center in the City of
Chico, Butte County, California. The Project area is approximately 11.45 acres on 3 Parcels (APN 006 -400-
029-000, APN 006-400-077-000, APN 006-400-080-000) located at 13309 Garner Lane, Chico, CA 95926
(Figure 1).

Specifically, the site is located in Chico, Butte County, California, Latitude 39.785621, Longitude -
121.891044, within the United States Geological Survey (USGS) 7.5” “Nord, CA” quadrangle, Section 5,
Township 22N, RangelE. The site is characterized by annual grassland, barren, eucalyptus, urban, and
valley oak woodland habitats. The site currently contains a commercial building and paved parking area
and was previously a golf course. The terrain is relatively flat. Commercial developments, including the
Butte Humane Society, occur to the northwest and southeast of the Project boundary; residential, annual
grassland, and agricultural areas occur to the southwest; and residential buildings to the northeast.

The Project involves the development of an aquatic and recreation center. The property is a phased
design with the completed master plan including a 50-meter pool, water slides and recreational pool,
fencing, parking, landscaping, concessions, bathrooms, administrative offices, mechanical building and
shade structures (figure 2).

Chico Area Recreation & Park District | 545 Vallombrosa Avenue, Chico, CA 95926
P: (530) 895-4711 | F: (530) 895-4721 | www.ChicoRec.com
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Figure 2. CARD Aquatic Center Master Plan
California Environmental Quality Act

Section 15183 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) mandates that projects which are
consistent with the development density established by existing zoning, community plan, or general plan
policies for which an EIR was certified shall not require additional environmental review. The Chico 2030
General Plan Update EIR (GPU EIR) was certified by the Chico City Council on April 12, 2011. In
accordance with this CEQA Guidelines section, the project is consistent with the development density
established by Community Commerecial zoning district and Commercial Mixed-Use General Plan land use
designation.

This site is designated Commercial Mixed Use on the City of Chico General Plan Land Use and is zone CC-
AOD (Community Commercial with Airport Overflight Zone D Overlay). The designation allows outdoor
commercial recreation, health/fitness clubs, community centers, indoor entertainment, schools, and
service uses. Impacts associated with these types of uses, including noise, aesthetics and traffic are
avoided or mitigated through implementation of General Plan goals and polices. As previously discussed,
the project achieves General Plan consistency through its site design, architectural concept, and
consistency with municipal code standards regarding lighting, landscaping, parking and setbacks.

Chico Area Recreation & Park District | 545 Vallombrosa Avenue, Chico, CA 95926
P: (530) 895-4711 | F: (530) 895-4721 | www.ChicoRec.com



Based on the District’s review and consideration, no significant impacts were identified that; are peculiar
to the project or its site; were failed to be analyzed in the Chico 2030 General Plan Update EIR; are
potentially significant off-site and/or cumulative impacts which the GPU EIR failed to evaluate, and; there
is no substantial new information which results in more severe impacts than anticipated by the GPU EIR.
In addition, in a good faith and as part of due diligence, CARD has taken upon itself to conduct salient
additional assessments specific to the site including a Biological Resource Assessment, Tree Health
Assessment, Traffic Estimation, and Cultural Resources Inventory.

Discussion

The project would not substantially degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat
of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten
to eliminate a plant or animal community, reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered
plant or animal or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory.
Based on the preceding environmental analysis, the application of existing regulations and incorporation of
identified measures and to avoid significant environmental impacts associated with the project, including
those related to aesthetics, air quality, biological resources, cultural resources, geology/soils, hydrology and
tribal cultural resources, new impacts would be minimized or avoided, and the project will not result in
direct or indirect adverse effects on human beings or the environment, nor result in significant cumulative
impacts.

In accordance with Section 15183 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) which mandates that
projects which are consistent with the development density established by existing zoning, community plan,
or general plan policies for which an EIR was certified the CARD Aquatics and Recreation Park does not
require additional environmental review and will proceed with consideration of the identified in the
Biological Resource Assessment, Tree Inventory, and Cultural Resources Inventory. Therefor, as the Lead
Agency, CARD will proceed with a formal Notice of Exemption to complete the CEQA process.

References:

1. Chico 2030 General Plan
https://chico.ca.us/Departments/Community-Development/Planning-Division/General-Plan--Other-
Planning-Documents/Chico-2030-General-Plan/index.html

Biological Resource Assessment — Prepared by Galloway Enterprises

Tree Hazard Inventory — Prepared by Galloway Enterprises

Traffic Data — Prepared by Confluence Design

Butte County Association of Governments VMT - Prepared by CARD

Cultural Resources Assessment - Prepared by Galloway Enterprises by Sean Michael Jensen M.A.

o Uk wN
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Notice of Exemption Appendix E
To: Office of Planning and Research From: (Public Agency):
P.O. Box 3044, Room 113 Chico Area Recreation and Park District (CARD)

Sacramento, CA 95812-3044

County Clerk
County of: Butte (Address)

155 Nelson Avenue

Oroville, CA 95965

545 Vallombrosa Ave, Chico, CA 95926

Project Title: Chico Aquatic Center

Project Applicant: Chico Area Recreation and Park District (CARD)

Project Location - Specific:

13309 Garner Ln. 95973 APN:006 -400-029-000, 006-400-077-000, 006-400-080-000

Chico Butte

Project Location - City: Project Location - County:

Description of Nature, Purpose and Beneficiaries of Project:

Aquatic park containing recreational pools, slides, shade, parking, concessions, and
playgrounds for the purpose of community recreation. See attached.

Chico Area Recreation and Parks District
Scott Schumann

Name of Public Agency Approving Project:

Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project:

Exempt Status: (check one):
O Ministerial (Sec. 21080(b)(1); 15268);
U Declared Emergency (Sec. 21080(b)(3); 15269(a));
OO0 Emergency Project (Sec. 21080(b)(4); 15269(b)(c));
O Categorical Exemption. State type and section number:
O Statutory Exemptions. State code number:

Reasons why project is exempt:
NOE is under provision 15183 - See attached.

Lead Agency

Contact Person: 530-813-3253

Scott Schumann Area Code/Telephone/Extension:

If filed by applicant:
1. Attach certified document of exemption finding.
2. Has a Notice of Exemption been filed by the public agency approving the project?  Yes No

Signature: /‘;i_/#_\ Date: 2/14/2024 Titte:  Director of Parks & Fac.

Signed by Lead Agency < Signed by Applicant

Authority cited: Sections 21083 and 21110, Public Resources Code. Date Received for filing at OPR:
Reference: Sections 21108, 21152, and 21152.1, Public Resources Code.

Revised 2011


Scott Schumann


Staff Report FA-24-001
Facility Agenda Item 3

CARD Regular Agenda Item5.2
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chico Area Recreation & Park District

Facility Committee

STAFF REPORT

DATE: February 14, 2024
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Annabel Grimm, General Manager

SUBJECT: Softball Donation

BACKGROUND

Chico Softball Little League (CSLL) is proposing to donate two improvements to DeGarmo Park.
The first is a backstop for the T-Ball and Farm divisions, which would allow them to keep families
at the same park. Currently, younger siblings must travel to different facilities for games and
practices. The additional backstop would also provide more fields for practice. The location of
the backstop is indicated on the attached map.

The other is a snack shop renovation. The upgrades are to bring the facility to Public Health
Standards and include all new stainless-steel worktables, commercial three-compartment sink,
hand washing sink shelving, refrigerated unit, and freezer. Upgrading the facility allows CSLL to
provide more than pre-packaged concessions.

CSLL is often asked to host All-Star games and tournaments. The District does not cover the
cost of hosting All-Stars. This year, they have been asked to host both District and State
Championships, which is a significant honor. Upgrading the facility and increasing food
offerings provides CSLL the opportunity to increase its concessions income, recover the cost of
hosting All-Star games, respond to families’ request for better quality food, and demonstrate its
investment in the facility overall.

CARD and other users could also benefit from the upgrades being proposed. In the unlikely
event CSLL moves its operations to a different location the structural improvements would
remain in place as property of CARD. Equipment such as freezers, refrigerators, hotdog rollers,
etc. are property of CSLL.

RECOMMENDATION
The Committee recommend to the Board of Directors the acceptance of CSLL's donations and
improvements to the DeGarmo snack shop.
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Staff Report FA-24-002
Facility Agenda Item 4

CARD Regular Agenda Item 5.3
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chico Area Recreation & Park District

Facility Committee

STAFF REPORT

DATE: February 14, 2024
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Annabel Grimm, General Manager

SUBJECT: Arc Collaboration

BACKGROUND

The Arc of Butte County is a nonprofit organization dedicated to supporting individuals with
intellectual and developmental disabilities. In line with its mission, The Arc purchased
playground components with the intention of enhancing one of its locations. However, due to
changing needs and strategic considerations, The Arc is now exploring alternative uses for this
equipment.

After careful consideration, The Arc of Butte County believes that a collaborative project with
CARD presents an opportunity to maximize the impact of the purchased playground equipment.
Specifically, The Arc has propose installing the equipment at an existing CARD park.

ANALYSIS

Collaborating with CARD will facilitate greater community access to the playground equipment.
By installing it in a CARD park, individuals of all abilities will have the opportunity to enjoy the
facilities, promoting inclusivity and community engagement.

The collaboration allows for the pooling of resources and expertise. CARD brings extensive
experience in park management and maintenance, which will ensure the sustained upkeep of
the playground equipment. In addition, CARD has identified a third partner that wishes to fund
the installation of the donated equipment.

The proposed collaboration between The Arc of Butte County and CARD aligns with the
missions of both organizations to enhance recreational opportunities and promote inclusivity
within Butte County. By working together, The Arc and CARD can amplify their impact and serve
the community more effectively.

RECOMMENDATION
The Committee recommend the Board of Directors approve The Arc collaboration, accept the
playground components, and install the equipment at Rotary Centennial Park.
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Staff Report FA-24-003
Facility Agenda Item 5

CARD Regular Agenda Item 5.4
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chico Area Recreation & Park District

Facility Committee

STAFF REPORT

DATE: February 14, 2024
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Annabel Grimm, General Manager

SUBJECT: Rotary Donation

BACKGROUND

The Chico Noon Rotary has been a long-standing supporter of the District. In 2020, the club
selected the construction of the park on Ceres Ave. as its club project. Rotary members donated
hundreds of labor hours and donated about $60,000 to the project. As the club celebrated its
100th anniversary, the park was named Rotary Centennial Park to commemorate the occasion
and highlight the club's special contributions.

The 2023-2024 Noon Rotary President, Bob Bracewell, has indicated that the club would like to
donate an additional $75,000 to add the remaining park amenities.

The Arc's desire to collaborate with the District and install its playground equipment at an
existing CARD park and the funding from the Noon Rotary Club make Rotary Centennial Park
the ideal location to showcase the partnership and illustrate service to the community from all
three organizations.

RECOMMENDATION
The Committee recommend the Board of Directors acceptance of the Noon Rotary Club
donation and the installation of The Arc's playground equipment at Rotary Centennial Park.
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Staff Report FI-24-009
Finance Agenda Item G

CARD Regular Agenda Item 5.5
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chico Area Recreation & Park District

Finance Committee

STAFF REPORT

DATE: February 22, 2024
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Annabel Grimm

SUBJECT: Change Order for Tyler Tech Implementation

BACKGROUND

At the January 2023 meeting, the Board approved contracting with Tyler Technologies for the
District's EMS software. Implementation activities began in October after staff training and
orientation and the assignment of the Tyler Tech implementation team.

Several challenges have been encountered with data migration and integrations with other
operating systems (registration software and procurement card portal). The data migration
issues are related to the antiquated nature and configuration of the District's accounting system.
A new Chart of Account structure had to be developed and then mapped to the old structure.
The mapping appears to be constraining the integration with the other operating systems to
push and pull information. In addition, there was a significant amount of data that was not
identified in the import files. This required the information to be manually entered resulting in
project delays.

These are not uncommon problems and were anticipated to a large degree. The
implementation at this point is about two weeks behind the original schedule. In reworking the
project plan, it was identified that there were no contingency hours built into the budget to
account for implementation issues.

Staff requested Tyler Tech prepare a change order to add 150 hours to the project.

RECOMMENDATION
The Committee recommend to the Board of Director to approve the change order to allocate
additional hours to the Tyler Technology software implementation.
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CHICO AREA RECREATION AND PARK DIST, CA Change Order: TYL-2024-0052729
Tyler Technologies

Project: Chico Area Recreation and Parks District, CA 2022-338431-X2L0QO0 - ERP Pro
Financial
Date: 2/15/24

Client Project Manager: Holli Drobny
Tyler Project Manager: Joel Soape

Reason for Change

Client has had a difficult time with their EMH and parallel payroll and this forced a shift in go live. That shift required some additional work by the IC and a change in ICs. The client agreed to a Change Order to
cover this time and requested that it include additional hours in order to prevent needing to return to their board for any additional time later.

Impact on Project Scope
None.

Cost
Cost to Client
Cost to Tyler

Total Cost

$21,750.00
$0.00
$21,750.00

Task(s) \Hourly Rate Billable Hours Nonbillable Hours \Task Category
$145.00 150 0

Acceptance
Note: No changes may be made to this project without the agreement of the Project Manager(s) and must be approved by the Project Director. Submit endorsed Change Order to the Tyler Technologies Project
Manager.

ApprovalDate ApprovedBy ‘Title
2/15/24 Delana Manager,
Alford Implementation
2/15/24 Rob Director, Professional
Justice Services




Staff Report FI-24-010
Finance Agenda Item H

CARD Regular Agenda Item 5.6
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chico Area Recreation & Park District

Finance Committee

STAFF REPORT

DATE: February 22, 2024
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Annabel Grimm

SUBJECT: Nature Center ADA Project Award

BACKGROUND

This is year 2 of the District's 5-year plan to address ADA improvement. The annual allocation is
$135,000. The Nature Center's travel path is one of the major improvements for FY 23/24. In
accordance with District policy, informal bids were solicited with the following results:

Builder Solutions, Inc. $93,477
KelCo Construction, Inc. $88,235
JS Construction & Concrete, Inc. $80,100
B&M Builders, Inc. $77,950
Hyatt Contracting, Inc. $72,912
Franklin Construction, Inc. $70,250
Mattingly Concrete $70,000
R&R Horn $54,000
Rock Creek Construction, Inc. $42,198

RECCOMENDATION
The Committee recommend to the Board of Director to award Rock Creek Construction, Inc. for

Nature Center ADA project: $42,198 + contingency.
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CARD BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chico Area Recreation & Park District

STAFF REPORT

DATE: February 22, 2024
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Anjie Goulding, Director of Recreation

SUBJECT: Recreation Update — February

Youth Sports
Our basketball season has been a slam-dunk success so far! From buzzer-beating victories to

heart-pounding matches, our teams have showcased their skills and sportsmanship on the court,
capturing the attention and admiration of fans across the community. The relentless dedication
of our coaches, players, and volunteers has been instrumental in fostering a positive and safe
environment where each participant can thrive and grow.

As we transition from the hardwood to the vibrant landscape of spring, our focus shifts toward
the exciting array of programs. Behind the scenes, our dedicated staff are hard at work conducting
interviews to assemble a dynamic team. Through strategic marketing initiatives, we're spreading
the word far and wide, igniting anticipation and excitement among prospective participants.

Adult Sports
Winter Adult Basketball and Volleyball playoffs are underway. Winter Softball, Soccer and Futsal

are midway through their season and playoffs are scheduled for early March. Winter Soccer and
Futsal are brand new leagues, and our winter Softball league has filled for the first time in over 3
years. Winter Softball and Soccer leagues are at Community Park and Futsal games are
underway at the new futsal court at Chapman Park. We are also very excited about hosting fun
new tournaments this year. The Valentines' Adult Volleyball Tournament is scheduled for
February 25th at the field house. March Madness Adult Basketball Tournament is planned for
March 10th. Spring Adult Sports registration is open now and divisions are filling up fast.

Winter Season Team Numbers:
Softball- 5 | Soccer- 20 | Basketball- 16 | Volleyball- 27 | Futsal- 4

Field and Court Rentals

231 field rentals have been booked for the 2024 calendar year, and more field rental requests
are coming in every day. Fields are rented to about 15 different youth sports organizations, most
of which are non-profits. Little League Softball and Baseball practices are underway at DeGarmo
and Wildwood, and opening day is Saturday, March 9th. Youth Soccer games are underway at
Community Park on Saturdays. The True North Housing Alliance has rented out the Community
Park Pickleball courts for the 6th Annual Chico Classic Pickleball Tournament on April 27th.
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Nature Center

Nature Center is open Friday and Monday, 10am-1pm, and Saturday and Sunday 10am - 3pm.
We are gearing up for field trip season beginning in the Spring, where we will be hosting
Elementary School Science classes and other local youth groups. Nature Center Field Trips: Meet
Our Animals, Aquatic Investigation, Discovery Hikes, Scat Lab, Skulls and Pelts Lab, and
Topography and Erosion.

Chico State professor of Biology, Dr. Tag Engstrom has incorporated the Nature Center back
into curriculum for one of his biology classes. They will periodically be coming to the Nature
Center to see up close and learn about some of our native species they might find when
working at Big Chico Creek Ecological Reserve (BCCER).

After School Program

We continue to work with Chico Unified to start prepping families for more ASP programs to
transition to the CUSD Blast After School Programs next year. For the 24/25 school year, the
remaining CARD programs on Chico Unified campuses (Hooker Oak and Marigold Elementary
Schools) will be transitioning from CARD to BLAST.

Inclusion

Our Inclusion team continues to work hard to find ways we can expand programming to serve
our community. Our inclusion-specific programming is going great, we are thrilled about our
participation in these programs growing. We are also full steam ahead working on fine tuning
our first inclusive prom, with the theme of ‘Superstars’. More to come soon!

Classes and Camps
We are looking forward to hosting our Springtime Delight Camp the week of March 18t"-22",

Updated contracts have been sent to independent contractors who are offering programs in
2024. These contracts ensure that all of our independent contractors on the same payment
structure with equity and transparency in mind.

We are inputting all the program content from independent contractors that are offering
programming in the summer and are excited about all the new programs coming in!

Aquatics
Recruitment for lifeguards has officially begun. We are working hard to hire enough lifeguards

to staff PV & Sycamore pools. Lifeguard certification classes will begin at the end of March.
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CARD BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chico Area Recreation & Park District

STAFF REPORT

DATE: February 22, 2024
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Scott Schumann, Director of Parks and Facilities

SUBJECT: Parks and Facilities Update - February

Capital Project Updates:

Chapman Park

Permit has been finalized with the City of Chico and Butte County Health Department. Final installation
of acorn-themed capsizing dump bucket is anticipated in March prior to the warming weather. Staff
are addressing lead time issues with the leadership at the manufacturer. Additional signage for shower,
entrance/exit, and splash pad use are being designed and procured. Concerns from the irrigation audit
result have called the installer back to the project to address distribution uniformity.

Lakeside Pavilion Sound and Projection
Sound improvements and installation of permanent mounted projection are currently underway onsite.

ADA Improvements

Informal bid results for the Nature Center accessible pathways project have been submitted with a low
bidder selected. Installation will address several drainage issues on site and improve accessibility with
tinted concrete, including stamped animal tracks of local fauna.

CARD Center Roof and Exterior

Staff are finalizing bid documents with the engineer this week with anticipated bidding to occur in
March 2024. Considerable dry rot and repairs have been identified in the scope of work for bidders to
address.

Community Park Maintenance Hub
Staff are finalizing the request for proposals with anticipated bidding in March 2024.

Sport Field Maintenance

Soccer Fields

Staff have completed the targeted resod of the goalie boxes and mid-fields at DeGarmo with Bermuda
turf. This in-house project will establish turf in the highest use areas of the fields improving the
aesthetic, playability, and safety of fields.

Urban Forestry Management
Staff have been busy with seasonal formative tree pruning. Two new trees have been planted at
Hartley Park. Trees contained within new parks to CARD (Chapman, Emerson, Indigo) have been added
to the District inventory within District tree management software.
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Staff Training

Staff have participated in formal lock out/tag out, welding, bloodborne pathogen, and small tool
training. In addition, Utility II's and select Utility I's continue to complete their Qualified Applicator
Certification and training (QAC) in order to maintain current knowledge and expertise in fertilizer and
pesticide application practices.

New Park Acreage

Staff are working closely with the developer responsible for the Emerson Park expansion providing
input and approvals on irrigation, landscape design, turf, and plant selection. Anticipated completion is
April, 2024 with a hand over to CARD maintenance in June, 2024.

Facility Improvements

PV Pool

Staff have installed new heaters in the changing rooms at PV Pool addressing a deferred maintenance
item to improve comfort level in the open ceiling changing rooms.

Capital Improvement Project Planning

While staff have been addressing maintenance and current projects, Supervisors have been looking to
the future identifying deferred maintenance and procuring estimates for several capital improvements
as well as, in-house projects to address in the 2024-2025 fiscal year.
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CARD BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chico Area Recreation & Park District

STAFF REPORT

DATE: February 22, 2024
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Annabel Grimm

SUBJECT: General Manager Update - February

Outdoor Recreation Legacy Partnership (ORLP) - District staff completed and submitted the
ORLP grant application for the construction of DeGarmo soccer fields (2), lighting, parking, and
bathroom. The grant request was for $5M and has a 50% match for a total project value of $10M.

DeGarmo Golf — The project is progressing. Staff continue to coordinate with BCSEF and the City
of Chico through the permitting process. A lease agreement is being drafted and will be brought
to the Board for approval in March.

Administration

Policies & procedures — We continue efforts to update and revise District policies and procedures.
With the organization's growth and the addition of facilities and programs, updated policies and
procedures streamline operations by providing clear guidelines and protocols for staff members to
follow. This clarity promotes efficiency in decision-making, resource allocation, and service delivery,
ultimately improving the effectiveness of the special district's activities.

Labor negotiations — Hand in hand with updating policies and procedures, staff have begun
preparing for labor negotiations. Preparation is a fundamental aspect of labor negotiations that
facilitates understanding, fosters collaboration, and increases the likelihood of reaching favorable
agreements for both management and labor.

Software implementation — Finance and HR staff continue to work on the implementation of the
District's new ERP software. They have encountered several challenges in the migration of existing
data to the new environment.

Notable Meetings

- Butte County Social Services Leadership Council met on January 30. The purpose of the
council is to bring together executive leaders from across Butte County's social services
sector. Through the council, the aim is to enhance collaboration among service providers,
offer leadership development opportunities, provide educational resources, and create a
forum for sharing best practices.

- Non-profit Leadership Group met on January 31.

- EBC & Chico Tourism Committee: The Committee met on February 1 to discuss the
progress of the Travel Chico and Explore Butte County initiatives.

- District staff met with City of Chico Parks & Natural Resources division on February 2 to
discuss joint projects, including the observatory lease, Notre Dame/Humboldt property
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transfer, Hignell property purchase, Windchime Park plan, Hooker Oak bank repair,
Sycamore Field storage, and the Husa Ranch/Nob Hill Park LLD assessment.

- CARD hosted the Butte County Special District Association chapter meeting on February 7.
The purpose of the forum is to discuss local issues, foster collaboration among Districts,
and make recommendations to the CSDA Board of Directors.

Special Events
Spring Jamboree will be held on March 30! The Event Team is continuing to secure community
partnerships with an updated Special Event Sponsorship Packet.

News Stories

Chico Area Recreation and Park District groundbreaking development - Action News Now
CARD agrees to run Valley's Edge parks - Chico Enterprise-Record

Chico Area Recreation and Park District will unveil plans for hundreds of acres of new parks —
Action News Now

CARD accepts ceremonial park land deed from Valley's Edge - Chico Enterprise-Record

Park promise for Valley's Edge development — Action News

Changes are coming to the Chico Community Observatory — Action News

A new golf course complex may be coming to Chico - Action News
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